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Chairman’s Statement
EERE

To Our Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of In Construction
Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present
you with the annual report for the year ended 31 March
2019 (the “Financial Year 2018/19").

Founded in 1996, our Company is an experienced general
and foundation contractor serving the Hong Kong building
and construction industries by offering quality and flexible
solutions to our customers. Using our ability to solve different
and complex issues on construction projects, we continue
to build trust and credibility with our existing and new
customers. We could not have done it without the support
of our business partners who have been working with
us job-by-job over the years. The implementation of our
self-developed, successful formula in project management,
together with our strong bond with our customers and
partners, has enabled us to withstand the up and down
market conditions that we experienced the last two decades.

Keen competition in the construction market continue as
a result of the prolonged delay on granting funds for new
public works which has driven more public sector contractors
to tender for work in the private sector. Such severe
competition in the market had led to dropping in the number
of open tenders and suppressed contract prices, which had
negative impact on our contract revenue and profit margin.
However, the Group's financial position remains strong with
only 8.5% net gearing as at 31 March 2019.

In 2018, facing the fluctuation in the global financial market
and the uncertainty of American policies on global economy,
the Company are mindful not to reduce our profit margin
without considering the negative impact to our shareholders’
interests. Nevertheless, we remain confident and are
well-positioned in the market as our operation model of
subcontracting works allows us flexibility to remain resilient
to adverse impact. In this financial year, facing such severe
competition, we are still able to be awarded 3 new contracts
with an aggregate contract sum of HK$558.1 million, as
compared to 6 new contracts with an aggregate contract sum
of HK$345.2 million in last financial year.

HRMBRER
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Chairman'’s Statement (continued)
FERE (E)

Looking ahead, we remain prudently optimistic about the
prospects of the construction market due to long term
demands in the construction industry in view of the housing
supply target of over 380,000 residential units in short to
medium term. We will continue to adhere to our strategy
of focusing on ‘design and build" projects. With our long
established reputation, experienced management team,
the listing platform and healthy financial position, our
management team is convinced that we will continue to build
value over the medium to long term for our shareholders.

On the behalf of our board, | would like to express our sincere
gratitude to our management and all our staff for their hard
work and dedication, as well as our shareholders, business
associates and other professional parties for their support
throughout the year.

Lau Pak Man
Chairman
Hong Kong, 21 June 2019
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Highlights
e

Hksm305.1 sz Hksm30.6 mamx

Up HK$17.3m from FY17/18 Down HK$5.8m from FY17/18
B-2—t /- \BBRFEEENI73EEEL B-E—t - N\BBEEFERDSEEET

REVENUE % GROSS PROFIT £
Hks0.013 == Hksm10.6 =
HK$0.028 in FY17/18 Down HK$12.4m from FY17/18
—E—+ - N\BBREEB0.028%E T B-E—+t /- \BREERVI24AEEET
EARNINGS PER SHARE SR ZF| NET PROFIT #EF|

GROSS PROFIT MARGIN FY 2018/2019 GROSS PROFIT MARGIN FY 2017/2018
—EB-N - AMBFEEERE —E -t - \BBRFEEERE

10.0% 12.7%

4
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DM

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group is engaged as a contractor in the foundation
industry in Hong Kong, undertaking foundation works as
well as associated works including demolition works, site
formation works, ground investigation field works and
general building works for local customers.

Business Review

The Group was engaged to undertake foundation and
associated works in the private sector construction projects in
Hong Kong, with an emphasis on design and build projects
and on undertaking the role as a main contractor.

The Group places emphasis on design and build projects
because of the flexibility and capability in coming up with
foundation design plan that suits its customers’ requirements
and the site conditions. During the Financial Year 2018/19,
the Group had successfully carried out construction works
with alternative design which not only complies with the
technical requirements but also be more cost efficient for
"design and build” contracts. The cost efficient proposals
allow the Group to offer its customers a more competitive
pricing and at the same time secure its profit margin for the
year.

During the Financial Year 2018/19, three foundation projects
with an aggregate contract value of HK$558.1 million
were awarded to the Group. Four foundation projects
were completed during the year. As at 31 March 2019, Six
foundation projects with the outstanding contract sum of
HK$595.6 million were in progress.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEENRR D (&)

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

(continued)
Business Review (continued)

%K B R RE ()

%ol R ()

Status as at
31 March 2019

Year of award/project Type of contract R=ZF—IF
ERFE HA ERER ZA=+—BHHRR
Year 2016-2017

TE AR CE—LFFE

Cheung Sha, Lantau Island Design and build Completed
PR/ Rt K& BExEL

St. Paul’s Primary Catholic School, Happy Valley  Build only Completed

35 BE R AR R EH/ N B ERESe BExEL

Year 2017-2018

—E—+E_FEFEE

Chai Wan Kok Street, Tsuen Wan

£RIB ALY

Sky City, Chek Lap Kok

TR A i K

Seymour Road, Hong Kong

EREEE

Robinson Road, Mid-Levels

FlHREFDB

Waterloo Road, Kowloon
EEfTZE

Year 2018-2019
—E-NEF-NFE

Kok Cheung Street, Tai Kok Tsui
ANEWAHEE

Tai Po Kau

RNIEE

Caine Road

BB

Design and build
Rt Rk
Design and build
5t Rk
Design and build
Rt MsE
Design and build
Rt Rk
Build only
ER=Si

Design and build
et REE
Design and build
et MEE
Design and build
Rt &

Work in progress

Pe=

Completed
[RECEE

Work in progress
Pesy=

Work in progress
2

Completed
[RECEE

Work in progress

i

Work in progress

i

Not yet commenced

REF
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEENWED (&)

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

(continued)
Financial Review

During the Financial Year 2018/19, there were 10 projects
contributing revenue and gross profit of approximately
HK$305.1 million and HK$30.6 million, respectively, whereas
revenue and gross profit for the Financial Year 2017/18 of
HK$287.8 million and HK$36.4 million, respectively were
contributed by 19 projects. Top five projects contributed
revenue amounted to HK$244.9 million (2018: HK$219.1
million), in which the top project contributed 37.1% of the
total revenue.

Fierce competition in the market had led to a decrease in
gross profit margin to 10.0% for the Financial Year 2018/19
from 12.7% of last year. Such decrease was primarily
attributable to, among other factors, a few foundation
projects with relatively low gross profit margin compared with
the overall gross profit margin of last financial year.

Administrative and other operating expenses increased by
approximately HK$4.7 million to approximately HK$24.3
million, compared with approximately HK$19.6 million of
the Financial Year 2017/18, which was mainly due to foreign
exchange loss arising from bank deposits denominated in
Renminbi.

As a result, profit before taxation for the Financial year
2018/19 decreased by HK$15.2 million or 55.1% to HK$12.4
million, from the last financial year of HK$27.6 million.

%K B E R (F)

B # e

RZZ—N/—hBBFE 10EEE
S RIE BRI R EF 30518 BB TR
306EEBT MA-E—+,/— \BH
FEMIRE N EF287.8F 8% T K&36.4
BB THIVEEEER - AABEEEA
B A244 98 BB L (ZE— \F -
21918 &B7T) - B s KIEE BRI
#237.1% °

MEBFHRNEHENEHEFN27%
BMAOE_Z—N/ LB HFEN
10.0% » EEMmR (K a4E) 8 -t —@E
BERNBEEN ML - PBI0EIER
B E M R LR KPR o

TR REEMEEATIEINO4TEES T
BHRAZEEBTT M —+/ — N\
BREEANI196BESRBIL TEHRUA
REHEZSRITIFE £ S8R -

E - —F— )\ — NI BRFEBRRATEG
AF 1528 8B TEH55.1% 21246 &
BT M E— A ERA27.66 85
775 °
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEENWE DT (&)

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

(continued)
Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Highly regulated industry

The foundation industry is a highly regulated industry and
the Group is required to maintain certain registrations under
the laws of Hong Kong. In order to renew and maintain
these registrations, the Group is required to comply with
certain criteria set by the relevant governmental departments
and authorities such as the Buildings Department and the
Development Bureau. These include the maintenance of
certain financial criteria such as working capital level, the
adequacy of our management structure and the appropriate
experience and qualification of our personnel.

Any suspension of or a failure to maintain or renew the
Group's registrations could materially and adversely affect the
Group’s business.

Uncertainty in construction progress

Due to the nature of foundation works, the foundation
and structure of any buildings adjacent to the Group's
construction sites may be affected or damaged during the
construction process.

The Group may incur additional cost and time in carrying
out remedial works and this may cause material delay in
completing a project. The Group may face claims from
customers for losses and for liquidated damages due to
delay. Further, the Group may also be exposed to claims and
disputes from third parties arising from damage caused to the
adjacent buildings. Such claims, legal and other proceedings
may affect the Group's reputation and also increase the costs
of the projects undertaken by the Group, resulting in adverse
impact on the financial performance of the Group.

Failure to bid new contract

The Group’s business relies on successful tenders that
determine the award of contracts for foundation works and/
or associated works. Given the non-recurring nature of these
contract awards and the fact that the Group does not have
long-term commitment with its customers, the number of
contracts awarded to the Group may vary from year to year.

Upon the completion of its contracts on hand, the Group's
financial performance may be adversely affected if the Group
is unable to secure new tenders or obtain new contract
awards with comparable contract sums or at all.

%K B R RE ()

TERRRTRERRE

BERETF
WETENERERENTE  MAKE
ARBEBEVIRSE TEM - REER
REFZEEM - NEEBETHBBUTH
FIkERE  PIMETERERR - IRE
METIRE - ZEREREEIETHS
BEE MEBBEDKE ERRBRELR
ERETINKBIEERGRE -

IR B EMRE R B HIORERET
REERTEM IR HAREEBE
HERTHZE -

BEBRYTEERNE
ENETZENME - I AKEMERE
Hb AR B ()18 T O 30 B R A R PT BE IR A

BIERTENER -

SR B A REBLETT R TR £ BINA
K - AR BUR R e T IR E KIE
R REEFRERELTRERNEBRANE
EREENEPRE - I REEIRA
BEEAABFTXBERE =T RERMS
RN T - ZERE AR REMFRE
ARREFEAREEE  TNEMAKEA
BEIRBHKA S| BEAKEMBRIRE
ERNEE -

REEFBEHEH
REBMEBIORNRIPE - LURER
OIS ETER SEETRAK - %
RESERAONFEFHERFER
SEHEETFITERDAG  NEBERD
BREEXERFEE -

STARTF EAHR - WMAKBRENGH
MIRIR A NRBRONIEH - KWE
BRERE - AEEPMBRERGZEIT
b2 X
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEENWED (&)

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

(continued)
Principal Risks and Uncertainties (continued)

Uncertain external factors

Despite the fact that the construction industry is one of the
traditional core industries in Hong Kong and it is currently
benefitting from strong housing needs and large government
infrastructure projects, the construction industry may suffer
adverse impact in the event of any change in government
policies, sudden economic setback and unanticipated natural
disasters. Since our customers are mostly private sector
property developers, the future growth and profitability of
the foundation industry largely depend on the continued
prosperity of the property market and the construction
industry in Hong Kong.

Although the Group has a number of contracts on hand,
these external factors may affect the number of new
construction projects available in the private sector in medium
to long term.

Relationships with Customers, Working
Partners and Employees

The Group maintains long-term relationships with its
customers and working partners (including subcontractors,
suppliers and consultants), some of which have established
more than 10 years of working relationship with the Group.
The close working relationship can also be demonstrated by
the increasing number of customer portfolios and continuous
cooperation with working partners which may be engaged
by the Group in one or more of its projects at the same
time. Building successful long-term relationships with them
is a key element of the Group’'s business model, which is
closely interlinked with all the other elements of its model.
Successful long-term relationships are built on trust — a trust
that the Group is able to provide quality service and excellent
customer experience. To achieve this, the Group needs
experienced people with the right skills and capabilities as
well as continuous supports from its working partners.

%K B E R (F)

FERBRRTEERE (B

THEEINEFHE
BEFERBEXNBEEGRLOERZ
— BEBERRXBENRYNEREFRKREK
RARREZIER @ WBUNBRES - K8
RABRFBEEEBEEHNNERLE &
EERARERITNEE - ARRMINER
REBDRILEMERERR  HEXBRD
BRRANENRAEE LEURREEY)
EmiGNEEERBFEEET

HAREBBETHFREAL - ZFINE
REABEEF RAZERLETIGAES
MFTESEIRE BE -

HEF IHBHRESHNERRE

REFRETPRIERH (BRAE
B HERRER) S RARE  Ef
By bl E AL E D EEBBI0FN T
TERRR - WER TEREAREFAGH
E R sIR R NEB RN —EHIA LE
BEHTERH T HESIEGAEE - &
WERIRIM R IR A EEEBR
AMBARER  YEEAMFEMERE
BHE - RNERHBAEDEINMEEZ
- BREASEREMRHEE RSN IE
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ZABAERENENINEREEBROAL
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEENWE DT (&)

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

(continued)
Relationships with Customers, Working

Partners and Employees (continued)

The Group also maintains a very stable and experienced
management team and an amicable long-term relationship
with its employees. The Group has a low staff turnover rate
of 5% in the project management team in 2019 (2018: 5%)
and many of the Group's skilled employees have worked
with the Group for a number of years. The Group’'s key
management team comprises three executive Directors and
the Chief Financial Officer, the biography of each is set out
under the section headed” Biographies of Directors and
Senior Management” in this report. The Group’s experienced
management team, coupled with a stable pool of skilled
labour, is one of its key drives in delivering high quality work
to customers in order to attain high customers’ satisfaction.

Environmental Policies

The Group emphasises on environmental protection
when undertaking its projects. The Group was awarded
the ISO 14001:2004 (environment management system
accreditation). The current ISO 14001:2004 certificate is valid
from 1 August 2018 to 3 September 2020. When preparing
the tender documents, the Group will take into consideration
the environmental protection requirements of potential
customers as well as the relevant laws and regulations in
relation to environmental protection. The Group’s safety
and environmental officers are responsible for ensuring
that the Group satisfies the applicable laws and regulations
requirements and identifying and reporting on environmental
issues to our project management team.

Compliance with Relevant Laws and Regulation

The Group mainly undertakes foundation works and
associated works for construction projects in the private
sector in Hong Kong and is thus subject to the rules and
regulations implemented by the Buildings Department which
regulates contractors in the private sector. The Directors
confirmed that during the Financial Year 2018/2019 and
up to the date of this report, the Group had obtained all
the registrations and certifications required for its business
and operations in Hong Kong, and had complied with the
applicable laws and regulations in Hong Kong in all material
respects.

EB R PR (F)
BEF - THEBHRESNHR (H)

AEBETHERFEFFREREREENER
B WERHEE TREBRMAFRE - K
SER-_ZE-NFHEEEEEFNE IR
KRERE - A% (ZF—N\F:5%) B
AEERZARETIERAEEIEET
FoREENEZEEERBIE=ZHNT
EXNEREVBEE  SREHENARE
[EENEREBRABRE]| £ - A&H
EmEEmMEIEEPCER —HIRERREE
BT DRAEFPRHEEBEATIRUSEFPS
ERENTEHRSH N — -

BRREE

NEBFEETEERIERF ANEEE
IS0 14001:2004 GRIRE IR RFRHE) ©
IRBFISO 14001:2004BEM AW H - =

—NFNA-BE-Z-TFhHA=H-
REERIZNE - AEEEEREEER

FHBRRER RARRAMN LR
BoER - REENT 2 LRSI AR
RAEEAABRERLARNOET
HABRTENMNE  RIEE EEEE
% -

BFHEBEERESR
AEBTEREFELEMIGRKEEER
WETREIMEBRTE FAREETETE
RERLE AR PR AR B S R -
EFRR N_E- ) E-NABRFE
REERBERR  AEECREEEE
BRRLERFBRAEEMMEE - WA
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEENWED (&)

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND REES UBERREARERE
CAPITAL STRUCTURE
As at 31 March
KR=BA=+—H
2019 2018
—E2-NF —E-N\F
Current ratio BN & 4.0 4.0
Gearing ratio’ BEEAGELX 8.5% -
Note: Bt 3
1. Gearing ratio is calculated based on debts including payables incurred 1. AEAGBHERER (BELIFTE—REBLB

not in the ordinary course of business divided by the total equity as at

the reporting dates.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had cash and bank balances
of HK$45.6 million (2018: HK$68.0 million), of which
HK$36.8 million (2018: HK$47.5 million) were restricted
bank balances. Such restricted bank balances were held for
purpose of the issuance of surety bonds for our projects and
requirement of our general banking facilities. As at 31 March
2019, the Group had no bank overdrafts (2018: Nil).

The capital structure of the Group consisted of equity of
HK$244.9 million, with HK$20.7 million debts as at 31 March
2019.

The Group adopts a prudent approach in cash management.
The Group did not have any material outstanding debts as at
31 March 2019. Payment to settle trade payable represented
the significant part of the cash outflow of the Group. Taking
into account the light debt leverage, the Group is able to
generate cash and meet upcoming cash requirements. In any
case, the Group may utilise its banking facilities of HK$150.0
million, of which the unutilised and unrestricted banking
facilities amounted to approximately HK$109.4 million.

TR E A M ER R B AR E B E e R

EArE -
R-ZE—NE=ZA=+—8 ~EEHEF
456EBBIL(ZZE—/)\F :68.068EH

L) MRS RIBTTHEE  EF368EED

TL(ZZE—)\F :47.568BHT) BZEH
IRITHES - ZEZRHIRITERIIFIER
I8 B BITIEREH RAER PN —ARIRTT
BEFZE -W-_Z—NFE=A=+—8"
REBMIWTEBITEL(ZE—N\F |) -

—NF=ZA=+—H AEBEHNE
Zli T% 1524498 BT 2 HEwm &20.7
BEBITZEHE-

REBRBEEFLEITREEE - R
T-NFZA=Z+—0B  AEBELETM
EAKREERE HHENEZERNM
RTERBLAEBRERL - ZEEEE
HRER - NEBREMELIRS MR
HREHEE - AEEATMABR THAH
FHE1S008&B T 2RITHE  Eh Y
109.48 BAE LA ARE A & ERH AR
TRE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEENRR D (&)

EMPLOYEES

The Group had 49 full-time employees as at 31 March 2019
(2018: 43). The Group offers competitive remuneration
package that is based on the overall market rates and
employee performance, as well as the performance of the
Group. Remuneration package is comprised of salary, a
performance-based bonus, and other benefits including
training and provident funds.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group had no capital commitments as at 31 March 2019
(2018: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Save as disclosed in note 22 to the financial statements, the
Group had no other contingent liabilities as at 31 March
2019.

CHARGE OVER ASSETS

Save as disclosed in note 14 to the financial statements, as
at 31 March 2019, the Group had no other significant assets
under pledge (2018: Nil).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD,
MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED
COMPANIES, AND PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

There were no significant investments held, material
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated
companies during the Financial Year 2018/19. There is no
other plan for material investments or capital assets as at 31
March 2019.

o

\

WZEB-NF=RA=+—H  F~E£EHF4L9
22RER (ZF—\F:43%) - A&HE
RIBEETSKERERNRE ZRR - A
RAEBZEZBRR  REABFHIZH
Pr8 - FrENS B e H e RERIEA
AR BEEINIRATESEANZ EMET

B AR
RZE-NE=ZR=+—0 KEFL®
BAREE(ZE—N\F  8) -

HREE

BB IMERM 2R EESN - KT
—NFZA=+—8  FEELELiN
REE -

AEEMA

B BERRWEUFREEN RN
—NFZA=t+—H FEETEAHE
REEEM (ZF—)\F @) -

BREEARE - EAWEBIEE
MEBARRBEAR  UREX
REFEAEEMTE

RZB=\/—NBHRFER  NEEE
BREEAKRE BEAUBRHEMBER
AIRBELAR - RZE-—AF=A=+—
B HESEAREXRENEEMHME

g o



15

RERFERBRAT] o 2019 FiH

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEENWED (&)

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The net proceeds from the Listing will be utilised in
accordance with the proposed applications set out in the
section headed” Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” of the
prospectus of the Company dated 31 March 2015 (the
“Prospectus”) and the announcements of the Company dated
7 August 2015 and 28 March 2018. The below table sets
out the proposed applications of the net proceeds and actual
usage up to 31 March 2019:

LTS FRIEFRE AR
LTFAEREEESREAD R A A=
T-RAF=Z A=+ AZRRER (AR
B12)) (R B RABHOBERR] — &
RAARBSA-S—AF\A+tAR=
T \F=A-+N\BZDHREZERE
A TRRGIBE-_T-NF=A
S+ -ALENAMBREFREERRRE
B

Actual usage up

Proposed to 31 March

application 2019

Bz

—E-hF

=A=+—HLt

BERZ WERAZ

HKS$’ million HKS' million

AEET BEBT

Hiring of additional staff REEFEINE T 2.9 2.9
Acquisition of additional I FEEB MM BR AN 2R 1

machinery and equipment 29.9 29.9
Financing for the issue of BLARCRIE B BITER

surety bonds for future projects BEHFRE 56.7 44.9

General working capital —REEES 10.0 10.0

99.5 87.7

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Taking into account the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region’s policy in increasing land
supply and commitment to infrastructure investments, the
Group expects a rebound in the foundation industry in the
long run. Despite the vigorous competition in the Hong Kong
construction industry, the Board is confident with the Group'’s
future development in its net profit and scale of operations
due to its long established reputation, the listing platform
and healthy financial position. To maintain its competitive
edge, the Group continues to adhere to its business strategy,
by expanding our capacity to capture more business
opportunities, reinforcing its capability in foundation design
and project management skills, and offering qualitative and
flexible solution to its customers.
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ZRAEF AT RITRREATIEINL b e
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lau Pak Man (2lfA32) , aged 64, is our Chairman, Chief
Executive Officer, executive Director and General Manager of
the Group. Mr. Lau, together with Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong,
are the founders of the Group. Mr. Lau is responsible for
overall strategic development, project management and
client management of the Group. Mr. Lau has also been a
director of In Construction Limited, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, since 20 December 1996. Mr. Lau
obtained a Bachelor of Science degree in Civil Engineering
from the University of Leeds in July 1979. Mr. Lau has nearly
28 years of extensive experience in the construction industry
in Hong Kong since 1991. Prior to founding In Construction
Limited in December 1996, Mr. Lau was the project
manager and contract manager of Fong On Construction
& Engineering Co Ltd. between January 1991 till December
1994 and January 1995 till December 1996, respectively,
who was mainly responsible for H-piling foundations,
supply and installations projects as well as a construction
and redevelopment project. Mr. Lau has been a member
of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers since July 1992,
a chartered engineer of the Institution of Civil Engineers,
London, England since November 1984, a member of the
Institution of Civil Engineers since December 1983, a member
of the Institute of Highways and Transportation, London,
England since March 1983 and is a registered professional
engineer (civil) of Engineers Registration Board. Mr. Lau is the
spouse of Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit.

Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong (B% &), aged 64, is our
executive Director and the Director — Construction of the
Group. Mr. Cheng, together with Mr. Lau Pak Man, are the
founders of the Group and is responsible for overseeing
the tender process including foundation design and project
budget, as well as quality control of our projects. Mr. Cheng
has been a director of In Construction Limited since 20
December 1996. Mr. Cheng obtained a Bachelor of Science
degree in Engineering from the University of Hong Kong
in October 1977. In the course of his career, Mr. Cheng
has accumulated more than 20 years of comprehensive
experience in the construction industry. Between May 1989
and August 1992, Mr. Cheng worked in China Overseas
Foundation Engineering Limited as a director and deputy
general manager.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management (continued)
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Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit (B§32 4 ), aged 47, is our
executive Director and the Director — Operations of the
Group. Ms. Kwan is responsible for project management
and coordination, as well as daily operations of the Group.
Ms. Kwan has been a director of In Construction Limited since
1 December 2014. Ms. Kwan obtained a Bachelor of Business
Administration degree in Management from the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology in November 1994.
Ms. Kwan has accumulated over 20 years of experience in
the construction industry. She joined In Construction Limited
as an assistant manager in April 1997. Prior to joining
our Group, Ms. Kwan worked in Sam Woo Engineering
Equipment Limited from February 1995 to April 1997, as an
assistant manager. Ms. Kwan is the spouse of Mr. Lau Pak
Man.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE

DIRECTORS

Mr. Leung Chi Kin (B#E), aged 65, is an independent
non-executive Director appointed by the Company on
26 March 2015. Mr. Leung obtained a high diploma in
accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
(formerly known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic) in November
1976. In the course of his career, Mr. Leung has accumulated
over 40 years of working experience in auditing, accounting,
taxation and financial management. Mr. Leung is currently a
practicing Certified Public Accountant and managing director
of Chang Leung Hui & Li C.P.A. Limited. He is also a Certified
Tax Adviser of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong for the
year 2018. Mr. Leung is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, and a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Between
June 1976 and November 1980, Mr. Leung worked in Lowe
Bingham & Matthews Price Waterhouse & Co., and then
started his own accounting practice in January 1981 and has
been in public practice up to now.
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Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis (#k& %), aged 71, is an
independent non-executive Director appointed by the
Company on 26 March 2015. Mr. Lam obtained a Bachelor of
Science degree in November 1969, and after that he obtained
a degree of Doctor of Philosophy from the University of
Hong Kong in November 1972. Mr. Lam has over 45 years of
experience in engineering. Mr. Lam has been the managing
director and founder of LR Construction Technologies Limited
since August 2012, the managing director and co-founder of
LR Construction and Consultancy Limited since April 2012,
the managing director and co-founder of LR loT Limited since
June 2009. From November 1996 to August 2004, Mr. Lam
was a principal lecturer of the Vocational Training Council.
From 1976 to 1987, Mr. Lam was an appointed lecturer in
the Department of Civil and Structural Engineering of the
University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lam has been a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Engineers since November 1975
and is also a registered professional engineer of Engineers
Registration Board. Mr. Lam is also currently an independent
non-executive director of Magnus Concordia Group Limited
(Stock Exchange stock code: 1172).

Mr. Yau Chi Man Norman (also known as lao Chi Meng)
(EF#0), aged 56, is an independent non-executive Director
appointed by the Company on 26 March 2015. Mr. Yau is
qualified as a Barrister-at-law in Hong Kong in March 2011.
Mr. Yau obtained a Bachelor of Science degree in Electronic
and Electrical Engineering from Loughborough University of
Technology, England in July 1987. He subsequently obtained
a Juris Doctor in Laws and Postgraduate Certificate in Laws
from City University of Hong Kong in November 2008
and July 2010, respectively. Mr. Yau has over 20 years of
experience in electric power engineering. Mr. Yau worked
in CLP Power Hong Kong Limited between January 1991
and April 2010, during which Mr. Yau undertook various
positions, with his last position being a senior project
engineer at CLP Engineering Limited, a subsidiary of CLP
Power Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. Yau has been a member of the Institution of Engineering
and Technology, England (formerly known as the Institution
of Electrical Engineers, England) and a chartered electrical
engineer of the Engineering Council, England since 2000.
He has been a member of the Hong Kong Institution of
Engineers since 2001 and a member of the Chartered
Institution of Building Services Engineers, England since 2004.
Mr. Yau has also been a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of
Arbitrators since 2011.

MEBEE 7% BARERZE
—RFE = AT ARBEZEABILIERNT
BEE -MEER-NAANET—AES
BEZ24+ HERR-AEZF+—A
BISEBRELEFELEL - MEER
ITEREHRARISFNLER BT —=
FNNARES - MELERLR Construction
Technologies Limitedf) & S8 4818 |
Bl A BT — —F ™A ALR
Construction and Consultancy Limited#) &
FREPRBEEIMA  BZTTNEN
A ALR loT Limited#) 2 = 4247318 17 Bt
BEIMA - H—NNARFE+—AZEZZEE
WENA - MEERBBEIRBEEE
Bl e = NERFEZ—NN\EF - MEE
EZEAREBREBIARATIREEIRERN
EE e B—NtRF+— AR MEER
EFIRMBge s RANAAIEMIEM
EERMEMERETIRE - MELEBRITN
ARAERERGBRAR (BRZERG K
98 1M72) B IERMITES o

EFBEE  S6p BARRNRZ-Z—Hh
FZRAZ+TRBZERBIUIFHNITES -
ERERZT——F=ARBEAEEREH
ERER - FEER—NNEFEL AR
BlLoughborough University of Technology
BREFREMTIEZIREEL B o
BEERN_ZTZNFT-AKRZZE-—ZFt
RO RIERBRHRBRBEERE L X
BEXFE - FAERENIIRSTEES
0 &5 ERER—NAN—F—AZEZ
Z-EFMOARBRFIEEHNERAF]
HM G B ETRIBAL - WHREBALAEF
EENERRABZWBARTFREIRAGR
ARMEREHIE R TIRAM -

EREE - ETTFRRBEETE R
g (MEAESRIREMEG)NEER
HKETRMBSNFTEN T2 - KA
—EE-FRAEAIEMBGNEER
B_EENEEARBRFETRELE
MBENEE - AL T ——Fi
REBMEMEENEREE -



19

RERFERBRAT] o 2019 FiH

Biographies of Directors and Senior Management (continued)
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER AND COMPANY

SECRETARY

Ms. Wong Sin Yi Reginia (Ef&f&), aged 53, has joined
us as the Chief Financial Officer of the Group since 1 March
2019, and was appointed as our company secretary on 8
March 2019. Ms. Wong is responsible for the accounting and
financial functions, internal control as well as the company
secretary affairs of the Group. Ms. Wong is an associate
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and an associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators. She holds a master degree in Business
Administration from the University of South Australia. Prior to
joining the Group, Ms. Wong has over 20 years of experience
as the finance manager of several listed companies in Hong
Kong and has extensive experience in auditing, accounting
and financial management.
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The Board presents this annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the financial year ended 31 March 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company, and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in foundation works
as well as associated works including demolition works,
site formation works, ground investigation field works and
general building works. The activities and particulars of the
Company’s subsidiaries are shown under note 12 to the
financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the financial year ended 31
March 2019 are set out in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 60 of
this report.

DIVIDENDS

The Board has resolved not to declare a final dividend for the
Financial Year 2018/19.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to establish entitlements to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be
held on Friday, 6 September 2019, the register of members of
the Company will be closed from Monday, 2 September 2019
to Friday, 6 September 2019, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be
registered. Shareholders of the Company are reminded to
ensure that all completed share transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s Branch Share Registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Friday, 30 August 2019.

CHANGE OF ADDRESS OF HONG KONG
BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND

TRANSFER OFFICE

With effect from 11 July 2019, the Hong Kong Branch Share
Registrar and Transfer Office of the Company, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, will change its address from Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong to

Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen'’s Road East
Hong Kong

All telephone and facsimile numbers of the Branch Share
Registrar will remain unchanged.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY?’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Board is not aware of any significant event requiring
disclosure that has taken place subsequent to 31 March 2019
and up to the date of this report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, is set out on page 156.
This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements in this report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Financial Year 2018/19 in
the share capital are set out in note 19(c) to the financial
statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the Financial
Year 2018/19.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2019, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to equity shareholders of the Company amounted
to approximately HK$120,610,000.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 March 2019 are set out in
note 11 to the financial statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles
of association of the Company (the “Articles”), or the law of
Cayman Islands being the jurisdiction in which the Company
is incorporated.

DIRECTORS
(a) Directors of the Company

The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2019
and up to the date of this report, are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Pak Man (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong

Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Leung Chi Kin

Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis

Mr. Yau Chi Man Norman (also known as lao Chi Meng)

Pursuant to Article 108(a) of the Articles, one-third of
the Directors for the time being, or, if their number
is not 3 or a multiple of 3, then the number nearest
to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office
by rotation at every annual general meeting of the
Company. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-
election. Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong and Ms. Kwan Kit
Sum Kit retire from office by rotation at the 2019 AGM
and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election
at the said meeting.

The Company has received, from each of the
independent non-executive Directors, an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
The Company considers all of the independent
non-executive Directors to be independent.

(b) Directors of the Company’s subsidiaries
During the year and up to the date of this report,
Mr. Lau Pak Man, Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong and
Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit are also directors in certain
subsidiaries of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company and each of the independent
non-executive Directors has signed an appointment letter
with the Company. The appointment of each of the Directors
is for a period of three years and shall continue thereafter
until being terminated by either party giving not less than
three months’ written notice.

None of the Directors who are proposed for election or re-
election at the forthcoming AGM has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles provide that every Director shall be indemnified
out of the assets and profits of the Company against liabilities
(to the extent permitted by the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)) incurred by him
as such Director in the execution of his duties or otherwise
in relation thereto, provided that such indemnity shall not
extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty
which may attach to any such director. The Company has
taken out insurance against the liabilities and costs associated
with defending any proceedings which may be brought
against the Directors of the Company.

DIRECTORS" MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN
RELATION TO THE GROUP’S BUSINESS

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company,
any of its subsidiaries or its parent company was a party and
in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or during the
financial year ended 31 March 2019.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING

BUSINESS

Save for Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong'’s interest in Longo Piling
Company, details of which were set out in the section
headed “Relationships with Controlling Shareholders” of
the Prospectus, none of the Directors nor the controlling
shareholders of the Company nor their respective associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules) had any interest in a business
that competed or might compete with the business of the
Group in the Financial Year 2018/19.

Mr. Lau Pak Man, Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit, In Play Limited and
Kinetic Kingdom Limited, being the controlling shareholders
of the Company declared that they have complied with the
undertakings given under the Deed of Non-competition as
disclosed in the Prospectus. Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong, Longo
Piling Company and Wealth Celebration Limited declared
that they have complied with the undertakings given under
the Longo Deed of Non-competition as disclosed in the
Prospectus.

The independent non-executive Directors were delegated
with the authority to review, on an annual basis, the
compliance with the Deed of Non-competition and the Longo
Deed of Non-competition. The independent non-executive
Directors were not aware of any non-compliance of both
Deeds of Non-competition since the respective dates of the
deeds and up to the date of this report.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management
are set out in the section headed “Biographies of Directors
and Senior Management” of this report.

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 8 to
the financial statements.
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EEEHS (R

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2019, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations, within the meaning of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"), which (a) were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Division 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded
in the register referred to therein; or (c) were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules,
were as follows:

EERFETHAENRSER

—hE=ZA=+—8 BFKARQ
75 %TE&/\E\EA$ a) & E AR A=
(EERELFRBEERD ([FHERPER
Bl ) B - BRI K ESP S @IRIE
EH R EGHIEXVEET RN HBNE
ARB MR ETERS AR (BIERE

7875 I AR 1 B 5% S5 1RSI S5 4 1B
BREEDNER /SZ/AF') ()R 57 75
NMEIEARDIE352F A B LR A IGREF
BEREMANER X /k)a S(QRIE L
AR BB 8+ Pl E BT AEFHEITE
FRXBHIGERE 27 |7 A A 28 ) SR B

MRS MRBWT ¢

Long positions in the shares: REOHNER
Approximate
percentage
of the
issued share
capital of
the Company
Capacity/ Number of R N
Name of Director Nature of Interest shares B EITRAMN
EEKSZ B EmtE K5 EE BABFAE
Mr. Lau Pak Man BenechiaI owner 7,520,000 0.91%
2FxkE E=mEA A
Interest in a controlled corporation ™™ 270,000,000 32.53%
B 2 w2
Interest of spouse ete? 60,000,000 7.23%
fic 48 i 2 (10E2)
Total 337,520,000 40.67%
a3
Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong Beneficial owner 5,900,000 0.71%
BPEEE A EmEA A
Interest in a controlled corporation ™3 270,000,000 32.53%
R PRI A 7 5 (19
Total 275,900,000 33.24%
B
Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 4) 60,000,000 7.23%
R LT TSI A R Ay 2 0
Interest of spouse Mot? 277,520,000 33.44%
B 458 i 2 (1055)
Total 337,520,000 40.67%
At
Mr. Yau Chi Man Norman Beneficial owner 2,000,000 0.24%
(also known as lao Chi Meng) 5B A
EFEHEE
Total 2,000,000 0.24%

Bt
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EEERE (&)

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (continued)

Notes:

1. In Play Limited is 100.0% owned by Mr. Lau Pak Man. Mr. Lau Pak Man
is therefore deemed to be interested in the shares held by In Play Limited
under the SFO.

2. Mr. Lau Pak Man is the spouse of Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit. By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. Lau Pak Man is deemed to be interested in the same number of

shares in which Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit is deemed to be interested.

3. Wealth Celebration Limited is 100.0% owned by Mr. Cheng Wing
Cheong. Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong is therefore deemed to be interested
in the shares held by Wealth Celebration Limited under the SFO.

4. Kinetic Kingdom Limited is 100.0% owned by Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit.
Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit is therefore deemed to be interested in the shares
held by Kinetic Kingdom Limited under the SFO.

5. Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit is the spouse of Mr. Lau Pak Man. By virtue of
the SFO, Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit is deemed to be interested in the same
number of shares in which Mr. Lau Pak Man is deemed to be interested.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS'
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange on 16 April 2015. The register
of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO shows that, as at 31
March 2019, the following shareholders, other than those
disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interest in Securities”, had notified the Company
of its interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO:

EEREBTHRAEBNESESR
(%)

BfaE

1. In Play LimitedEB 21{AX £ 2 B A - 1RIE
BHREE B - AR AR IR BRI
Play Limited 45 A B& 15 P 1 B #E 25 o

2. SR ERMRL L L 2B - REFHF R
HEGED - BEXEERERRBRLL LR
BREAESNARSE KOS ES -

3. Wealth Celebration LimitedfR ¥4 2 £ 2 &
WA o RIBES REIE GG - S K ER I
18 A K Wealth Celebration LimitedFT#% A i%
DHRGER R -

4. Kinetic Kingdom Limitedf B3 0 Zx + 2 @
B IREFHFRAER - RO LT E R
R A K Kinetic Kingdom Limited Fr A 2 f& {7
HAERER -

5. RO T REMASEE ZRE - REBES R
HEED - BROKETEERNEAXEER
BREAHSNARZE RS Es -

FTERRNFEZES

VNN ) —HRFMA+BE
éﬁxﬁfﬁﬂiim $ AIREESMEE
f'mfﬁ”%3361‘mﬁ§ﬂ']$£%%%ﬂﬂﬁﬁ7?\

—E-NF=ZA=+—H KRIEEK
I%HBZ}\EE’JM%%EJ* NETH EH
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EEEHS (R

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS'
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (continued)

FERRNFEZERS (F)

Long positions in the shares: RBEEFR
Approximate
percentage
of the
issued share
capital of
the Company
Name of Number of LR NN
substantial shareholder Capacity shares BBEITRAMHN
TERRESE E287) ROEE BHABESHL
In Play Limited Beneficial owner 270,000,000 32.53%
EnREEA
Wealth Celebration Limited Beneficial owner 270,000,000 32.53%
EnEAA
Kinetic Kingdom Limited Beneficial owner 60,000,000 7.23%
BEnEAA
MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS FEHEBRREFR

The percentage of purchases and sales for the financial year
ended 31 March 2019 attributable to the Group’s major
suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

— the largest supplier 8.5%
— five largest suppliers combined 21.4%
Sales

— the largest customer 42.1%
— five largest customers combined 85.2%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the number of issued shares of the Company) had an
interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Apart from as disclosed under the paragraph headed
“Directors’ and chief executives’ interests in securities” above,
at no time during the year was the Company, its holding
company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors or the chief executive of
the Company or their associates to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
or any other body corporate.

RBE-Z-NF=ZA=+—HIEHHBF
B AEETEHERMEPEERER
HEBRDLMT

R
— A ER 8.5%
— AR EEEE 21.4%
HE
—BREF 42.1%
—RAAREFAE 85.2%
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hEA LS
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EEERE (&)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2019, there were no
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
of the Company which require compliance with any of the
reporting, announcement or independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Details of material related party transactions
undertaken in the usual course of business of the Group
are set out in note 23 to the financial statements. However,
these transactions were either exempt from reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, or did
not fall under the definition of connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that was publicly available and to
the best belief and knowledge of the Directors, the Company
has maintained the public float as required by the Listing
Rules throughout the year ended 31 March 2019 and up to
the date of this report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the Financial Year
2018/2019 is included in the Management Discussion and
Analysis in this report on pages 7 to 15 and forms part of this
Directors’ Report.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group participates in the mandatory provident fund
prescribed by the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong). Save
as the aforesaid, the Group did not participate in any other
pension schemes during the Financial Year 2018/19.
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EEEHS (R

SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OF
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS UNDER

RULE 13.18 OF THE LISTING RULES

On 26 June 2015, the Company as guarantor and In
Construction Limited (an indirect wholly- owned subsidiary of
the Company) as borrower, entered into a facility agreement
relating to a HK$80 million general banking and term loan
facilities (the “Facilities”) with a licensed bank in Hong Kong
as lender (“Lender”). The maturity date of the Facilities is
three years from the date of drawdown.

Pursuant to the Facilities, the Company, as guarantor,
has undertaken to the Lender that (i) Mr. Lau Pak Man,
Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong and Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit will
maintain an aggregate beneficial shareholding of not less
than 50% of the entire issued share capital of the Company;
and (ii) any of Mr. Lau Pak Man, Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong
and Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit will remain as the chairman of the
Company.

A breach of the above undertakings will constitute an event
of default, and the Lender may cancel or suspend the facilities
and demand repayment of any outstanding amount under
the facility agreement together with interest accrued thereon.

The above undertakings contain covenants relating to specific
performance of the controlling shareholders of the Company
which was subject to disclosure under Rule 13.21 of the
Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM to re-
appoint KPMG as the auditor of the Company.
By order of the Board

Lau Pak Man
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 June 2019
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TEERERE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognises the importance of corporate
transparency and accountability. The Company is committed
in achieving a high standard of corporate governance and
leading the Group to attain better results and improve
its corporate image with effective corporate governance
procedures.

Since Listing, the Board is of the opinion that the Company
had adopted, applied and complied with the code provisions
as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules except for the
deviation from provision A.2.1 of the Code.

According to provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Lau Pak
Man is the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, responsible
for overall strategic development, project management and
client management of the Group. The Board believes that
vesting the roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer in Mr. Lau Pak Man has the benefit of ensuring
consistent and continuous planning and execution of the
Company'’s strategies. The Board considers that the balance
of power and authority, accountability and independent
decision-making under the present arrangement will not be
impaired in light of the diverse background and experience
of the independent non-executive Directors, and the
composition of the Board which comprises equal number of
independent non-executive Directors and executive Directors
also provides added independence to the Board. Further,
the Audit Committee composed exclusively of independent
non-executive Directors has free and direct access to the
Company'’s external auditors and independent professional
advisers when it considers necessary.
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(A)

EREmE (F)

THE BOARD
Board Composition

The Board consists of six Directors including Mr. Lau
Pak Man (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer),
Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong and Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit
as the executive Directors and Mr. Leung Chi Kin,
Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis and Mr. Yau Chi Man Norman
(also known as lao Chi Meng) as the independent
non- executive Directors. Their names and biographical
details are set in the section headed “Biographies of
Directors and Senior Management” in this report. The
overall management of the Company’s operation was
vested in the Board.

Save that Mr. Lau Pak Man and Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit
are spouses, there are no financial, business, family or
other material relationships among members of the
Board.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Board has
at all times met the requirements of Rules 3.10(1) and
(2) of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive Directors
with at least one independent non-executive Director
possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The three independent non-executive Directors
represent half of the Board, the proportion of which
is higher than what is required by Rule 3.10A of the
Listing Rules whereby independent non-executive
directors of a listed issuer must represent at least one-
third of the board. The Board believes there is sufficient
independence element in the Board to safeguard the
interest of shareholders of the Company.

Directors’ Responsibilities

The Board takes the responsibility to oversee all major
matters of the Company, including the formulation and
approval of all policy matters, overall strategies, internal
control and risk management systems, and monitor
the performance of the senior executives. The Directors
have to make decisions objectively in the interests of
the Company.

Liability insurance for the Directors and senior
management officers of the Company was maintained
by the Company with coverage for any legal liabilities
which may arise in the course of performing their
duties.
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THE BOARD (continued)
Delegation by the Board

The management, consisting of executive Directors
along with other senior executives, is delegated with
responsibilities for implementing the strategy and
direction as adopted by the Board from time to time,
and conducting the day-to-day operations of the
Group. Executive Directors and senior executives meet
regularly to review the performance of the businesses
of the Group as a whole, co-ordinate overall resources
and make financial and operational decisions. The
Board also gives clear directions as to their powers
of management including circumstances where the
management should report back, and will review the
delegation arrangements on a periodic basis to ensure
that they remain appropriate to the needs of the
Group.

Compliance with the Model Code for

Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its
own code of conduct of dealings in securities of the
Company by Directors (the “Model Code”). Upon
specific enquiries of all the Directors, each of them
confirmed that he/she has complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code during the
Financial Year 2018/19.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors play
a significant role in the Board by virtue of their
independent judgement and their views carry
significant weight in the Board's decision. They bring an
impartial view on issues of the Company’s strategies,
performance and control.

All independent non-executive Directors possess
extensive academic, professional and industry expertise
and management experience and have provided their
professional advice to the Board.

The Board also considers that the independent non-
executive Directors can provide independent advice
on the Company’s business strategies, results and
management so as to safeguard the interests of the
Company and its shareholders.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
(continued)

All independent non-executive Directors are appointed
for a term of three years commencing from 26 March
2015. All of their appointments are extended for
three years commencing from 16 April 2018. None
of the independent non-executive Directors held any
other offices in the Company or any of its subsidiaries
or is interested in any shares of the Company. All
independent non-executive Directors have confirmed
their independence to the Company in accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

Each of the executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors has entered into a service
contract or a letter of appointment with the Company
for a specific term. Such term is subject to his/her re-
election by the Company at an annual general meeting
(“AGM") upon retirement. Article 112 of the Articles
provides that any Director appointed by the Board
to fill a casual vacancy in the Board shall hold office
only until the first general meeting of the members of
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at
such meeting.

In accordance with Article 108 of the Articles, at each
AGM of the Company, one-third of the Directors
for the time being shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director (including those appointed
for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election. Mr. Cheng
Wing Cheong and Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit shall retire
from office by rotation at the next AGM and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the said
meeting.

The members of the Company may, at any general
meetings convened and held in accordance with the
Articles, remove a Director by ordinary resolution at any
time before the expiration of his/her period of office
notwithstanding anything contrary in the Articles or
in any agreement between the Company and such
Director and may by ordinary resolution elect another
person in his/her stead.
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ERWmE (1)

THE BOARD (continued) A) BEEE (8)
Board Meetings EExEeE
The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the EFrgriemms kilERER
overall strategy as well as the operation and financial BV EE RS SRS LA Je B M BT IS R IR o
performance of the Group. Directors may participate EFREHEIUNEFEAAR
either in person or through electronic means of D@ -
communications.
The Board had convened four regular meetings during EFeRAFEEARAEAEHRE
the year. The attendance of the respective Directors to HOBEFLREEEERLRRE
the Board meetings and the AGM are set out below: BERGHEHINMNT -
Attendance/Number of
meetings held
HERY BTEERY
Regular

Board meetings AGM

EHESEEE BRBFARE
Executive Directors HBTES
Mr. Lau Pak Man a3 E 4/4 11

(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) (EERITEAR)

Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong HEERE 4/4 11
Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit BRLR T 4/4 171
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYFHITES
Mr. Leung Chi Kin PR E 4/4 171
Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis WEE L AE 4/4 171
Mr. Yau Chi Man Norman EFHEE 4/4 11

(also known as lao Chi Meng)

All Directors received training in the form of seminar
and provision of training materials to ensure that he/
she is fully aware of his/her duties and responsibilities as
a director under applicable rules and requirements. All
Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills.
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THE BOARD (continued)
Board Meetings (continued)

The Company Secretary updates Directors on the latest
developments and changes to the Listing Rules and the
applicable legal and regulatory requirements regarding
subjects necessary in the discharge of their duties.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in
continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. Directors are
continually updated on developments in the statutory
and regulatory regime and the business environment to
facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.

Directors are required to submit to the Company
annually details of training sessions undertaken by
them in each financial year for the Company to
maintain a training record for its Directors. According
to the training records maintained by the Company, the
training received by each of the Directors during the
year ended 31 March 2019 is summarized as follows:

(A EFEE)
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Type of trainings

Name of Director EENE EIER
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Lau Pak Man 2ETkE A B

Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong BB St A B

Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit Rt A B
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYFHTES

Mr. Leung Chi Kin REER S A, B

Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis WEHE ST E A, B

Mr. Yau Chi Man Norman (also known as lao Chi Meng) EFBUEE A, B

A attending seminars/conferences/workshops/forums
B: reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to the
economy, environmental protection business or director’s duties

and responsibilities etc.

A LM G GRS TS WiE
B: BREELE  RR - FBAEERAR
BEAESEMNRE BT REHER
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ERWmE (1)

THE BOARD (continued)
Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties including:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance;

(b) to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code
of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees and Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the
Code.

Board Committees

The Board has established three committees
and has delegated various responsibilities to the
committees including the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”), the remuneration committee (the
"Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination
committee (the “Nomination Committee”). All the
Board committees perform their distinct roles in
accordance with their respective terms of reference
which are available to shareholders of the Company
on the websites of both the Company and the Stock
Exchange. The Board committees are provided with
sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon
reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company's expense.

(A EFE(E)

EERBAE
ESSREETHEEERRBE
=

(a) ZERIEBHADAILEELRK
REFER

() BHLEBEEREREEA
BRI R FFEERER

(0 HERREERARARERS
B LB TERRREERE

d R BHEREBEANESR
KEENIRTEN LA RTM
(mA) R

() RIMARBERETTA -

ExZ8s
EXgETEXRI=EZES X
BEBBREDRKERZES 27l
RERZBR ([ERZES])  #
MEzEe ((HFMEEE)) RIERE
Bg((R2%Bg)) -2#&E%%
BEeORARanBRREERTH
FEMBG  MZBEEERAR
AN R AT E AR R RE
Bl -BEEZ 826 RRERNET
HBE ZE/EEXT "wHaA
ARANEEESBEATSKELE
XER-
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ERWmE ()

THE BOARD (continued) A) BEEE(8E)
Audit Committee EREES
The Company established the Audit Committee on RARRRZZE—RFE=A=+<AH
26 March 2015 with written terms of reference in Y BZEEES  WiEBR EMAEA
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and 32115 K AR B M 8%+ g <r B
paragraph C.3 of the Code as set out in Appendix 14 FCIBRMME FIVEEHBESR
to the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Audit cERLZEENEIEBRE AN
Committee are to make recommendations to the Board HBZEMNEETRERAEES
on appointments and removal of external auditors; RHEE®R BHRRERVERRA
review and to supervise the financial reporting process 12 R A S A N EP B 1 K R B B B A
and the effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls Bt - BRLESHEEE MINDIZ
and risk management. The Audit Committee meets BAESHEE TREFFRS
regularly with management and external auditors NRAFERFERE M ER - B
in reviewing the interim and annual reports of the B SPHRFERE -
Company before submission to the Board for approval.
The Audit Committee consists of three independent BZEZECHR KRB UIERTES
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Leung Chi Kin 4Pk - BIERNERLEL (FREEE
(being the chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Lam FE) MEBEEREFHEE -
Chi Hung Louis and Mr. Yau Chi Man Norman (also BREMMBBIEI2VERETE |
known as lao Chi Meng). In compliance with Rule ZERXRABRBESEREHE
3.21 of the Listing Rules, the chairman of the Audit & o
Committee possesses the appropriate professional and
accounting qualifications.
The Audit Committee convened three meetings during ERLZEERAFERT=RE
the year with attendance of each member as follows: = SREHERENT
Attendance/Number of
meetings held
HERE BTGB RE
Mr. Leung Chi Kin (Chairman) RREBEE (EE) 3/3
Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis S So 3/3
Mr. Yau Chi Man Norman FFEsesE
(also known as lao Chi Meng) 3/3
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(A) THE BOARD (continued)
Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration
Committee on 26 March 2015 with written terms of
reference in compliance with paragraph B.1 of the
Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee
are to make recommendations to the Board on the
overall remuneration policy and structure relating to all
Directors and senior management of our Group; review
performance based remuneration; and ensure none of
our Directors determine their own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee consists of 3 members,
being Mr. Yau Chi Man Norman (also known as lao
Chi Meng) (being the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee), Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit and Mr. Leung Chi
Kin.

The Remuneration Committee convened one meeting
during the year with the attendance of each member as
follows:

(A)

Exe (@)

FHESS
ARBR-ZE-RF=A-FXAH
REHEMZEES - WER EHHRA
B 8%+ PO PR #L ST RISEB 1 BRAVARE -
FIVEmBERE - FHEEEN
TERERUAEEMBEERS
RETEE R E R MBUR MRER
ExgRfER RIWRRERETE
R ARRESYEBTEH
R H) B o

FMEZEem =K EENX L
FHELE(FMEEEER) - BR
DR ERRFFRELE -

FHEZEEERAFERT—RE
& BKEHFELHNT

Attendance/Number of
meetings held

HERE BITEHERE

Mr. Yau Chi Man Norman (also known - F&5E4 (F4)
as lao Chi Meng) (Chairman)

Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit B2 0t

Mr. Leung Chi Kin RERELE

il
VAl
VAl
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EREmE (F)

(A) THE BOARD (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the Code, the
annual remuneration (including bonus) of the members
of the senior management of the Group by band for
the year ended 31 March 2019 is set out below:

(A)

WRIEST R 5P RIMESCEBL5MR - R
BE-Z-NF=A=1+—HIF
B AEESRERABZFES
B (BIRIEAL) IREEEI AT

Number of Senior

Remuneration Band Management
e E BREEABHE
Up to HK$1,000,000 1,000,000/ 7T sk A T 2

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee
on 26 March 2015 with written terms of reference
in compliance with paragraph A.5 of the Code as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The primary
duties of the Nomination Committee are to make
recommendations to our Board on the appointment
of Directors and the management of the Board
succession.

The Nomination Committee consists of 3 members,
being Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis (being the chairman of
the Nomination Committee), Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong
and Mr. Yau Chi Man Norman (also known as lao Chi
Meng).

The Nomination Committee convened one meeting
during the year with the attendance of each member as
follows:

REEESE

RRAFRZZE—RF=AZ+"H
RIZIEERZES  WER EHRA
B8%+ P ST RSB ASERAIRE -
RIVEEBERE - RERZEEW
ITERERNEEEFAERTSR
HERERERERENETFEE -

RAZEGH=FKEHENX A
THEE(REZEGER) - BXR
BRERIFHELE -

REZEENAFERIT-RE
&% BB HFELENT
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ERWmE (1)

THE BOARD (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

(A EFE &
REZEE (M)

Attendance/Number of
meetings held

HERE BITERRE
Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis (Chairman) WEIE S & () 71
Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong BREE S S 1/1
Mr. Yau Chi Man Norman EF8ULE 11
(also known as lao Chi Meng)
Board Diversity Policy EEgHESTLBE

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the
“Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve and
maintain diversity on the Board in order to enhance the
effectiveness of the Board.

Pursuant to the Policy, the Company seeks to achieve
Board diversity through the consideration of a number
of factors, including but not limited to the talent, skill,
regional and industry experience, background, gender
and other qualities.

The Board will consider putting in place measurable
objectives to implement the Policy and review such
objectives annually to ensure their appropriateness and
ascertain the progress made towards achieving those
objectives.

The Nomination Committee will review the Policy
annually to ensure its continued effectiveness.

ARRERMEFEREZTTIE
RUZBER]) - ER#INRERR
HEFEZERBEZTICURAES
G 2B REZ I #t -

RIFRZIRR - ARBIRBEBERES
HEER (BRERETRRAEE - 5 -
e RITEER AR M RE
WERE) AEBREFEKEL T -

EXeREREENGERENE
MR BER - WEFige %5 BRI
BRESEELEEERZEFAR
ZHEE -

REEBRBEFERTRICE MU
RARE BN -
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EREmE (F)

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND

INTERNAL CONTROL
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparing the financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2019 in accordance with
statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Directors also acknowledge their
responsibilities to ensure that the financial statements
of the Group are published in a timely manner. The
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions which may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors
have prepared the financial statements of the Company
on a going concern basis.

The reporting responsibilities of our Company’s external
auditors on the financial statements of the Group are
set out in the “Independent Auditor’'s Report” in this
report.

External Auditor's Remuneration

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the remunerations
paid or payable to KPMG in respect of its audit
services and non-audit services are HK$1,165,000
and HK$500,000, respectively. The non-audit services
represent the service fee paid to KPMG for the review
of interim results of the Group for the six months
ended 30 September 2018. The Audit Committee was
satisfied that the non-audit services in the Financial
Year 2018/19 did not affect the independence of the
auditor.

(B)

MR RE NS

B 7 B 3R
BEEHRAEENECABELATE
K RERBEFERRRASEEE
TE-NE=ZA=+—HBILtEE
M BHRE ER2NMERNEEE
BHRAEE R B ®RE -
EEWTHBETMSEAQ R4
BRECEZENBREAREZ
ERR 2 EATHBEREE - &
I EECIRBEKESEERREAN
NElZ B ISRE -

AR RINEZ BB AL B B 15
RZBMEETENARS [BLAZB
¥R

SNE R B &
BE-T-NF=A=+—HIF
FE  ARAREFHGHENER
P IR 28 2 B 42 & 3 A% AR 7% K% 3F
BERRBECNRENZHED RS
1,165,000/% 7T % 500,000/ 7T ° 3F
BRRGEEBHEHMEBHME
MAEEHEE—_T— /\FLA=1
B LB/ ME A &y B SRR T S A RO R
BE -BRZEGEMN TN
SN RFEFRERRBL T
BN 2 BILE o
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FINANCIAL REPORTING AND

INTERNAL CONTROL (continued)
Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the internal control of the
Group and for reviewing its effectiveness. Procedures
have been designed for safeguarding assets against
unauthorized use or disposition, the maintenance of
proper accounting records for the provision of reliable
financial information for internal use or for publications
and the compliance of applicable laws, rules and
regulations.

The Company does not have an internal audit function
and has engaged an external consultant to conduct an
assessment on the effectiveness of risk management
and internal controls of the Group for the period from
1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018. The Board
has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
internal control system of the Group and is satisfied
that the Group has complied with the Code in respect
of internal control from the date of Listing up to the
date of this report. The internal control is reviewed
and assessed on an on-going basis by the executive
Directors, and will be further reviewed and assessed at
least once each year by the Board.

Company Secretary

The Company has appointed Ms. Wong Sin Yi Reginia,
who is an employee of the Company, as its company
secretary. Ms. Wong has confirmed that for the year
under review, she has taken no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training. The biography of
Ms. Wong is set out in the section headed “Biographies
of Directors and Senior Management” of this report.

(B)

IR KRB ()

REBEE IR
EEgREASENANIEERE
AERY - UREIEFUREEE
U EREEEEAREE - HBIR
HERFRECHENRMAT ENH
BE R B E B B M - LR
i AED) ~ RAIRARB

AN E) A R T N EREAZ B AL - T
FEF—ZINEERR - N\E—
A—Bz_Z—)/\&+_A=+—
HHM AR A N EE R E R M A
MEEMNESME EEEE RN HE
NEERERANFRE  WHARE
BEE FTMHBEEZARERDH
IERREP I B FTRIREIRE ©
WITESSHERT RFTHEANEE
T EESESEFELET X
% e B R AR o

DNEAME
ARRBEREEFERELLE (RART]
BE) RRARIME - EXLERR
REEFE  RE2MFPR15(E
PR EREY - TR EME
BEHERARE[EERSREEAR
JEEE ] —§6 °
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COMPANY SECRETARY AND

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS
Shareholders’ Right

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles, extraordinary
general meetings may be convened on the requisition
of one or more shareholders holding, at the date of
deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company having the right
of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be
made in writing to the Board or the company secretary
for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition. Such
meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit,
the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company. Shareholders may follow the procedures set
out above to convene an extraordinary general meeting
for any business specified in such written requisition.

Subject to the provisions of the Articles, the Listing
Rules, and the applicable laws and regulations,
shareholders may propose a resolution at general
meetings of the Company by following the “Procedures
for Shareholders to Convene General Meetings” to
convene an extraordinary general meeting and propose
a resolution to be resolved at that extraordinary
general meeting. Please refer to the document titled
“Procedures for Shareholders to Convene General
Meetings” on the Company’s website for details.

(@)

RNEWE R RER

IR SRAEF

RIBEZRRAANE6AE - REREFHIR
AR BAZRRRERARM
ZERRNBHEREAAFEAR
RABFEATINTAZ—XF
BRERRAGLERRE - AWERA
NEEPARNESERARMER
- EABREZEREEEHER
SRR A 2 (R o] S5 T & B AR
ARE - FRSHAERIZEN
B2EARNBR - MEFSEENR
THHEFA2NBNRBETEHA
MBEREE  AERA(RZHHK
AN ARERSRaTTEMREH A
FRAREEEREFRRAREH
MABNAEREER  AdAR
AFEBRA - RRAIRE Lalii2
FAABRRBIARENGEERHE
M Z R EAET o
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COMPANY SECRETARY AND

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)
Shareholders’ Right (continued)

Pursuant to Article 113 of the Articles, no person other
than a Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless
recommended by the Directors for election, be eligible
for election as a Director at any general meeting
unless notice in writing of the intention to propose
that person for election as a Director and notice in
writing by that person of his willingness to be elected
shall have been lodged at the head office or at the
registration office of the Company. The period for
lodgement of the notices required will commerce no
earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of
the general meeting appointed for such election and
end no later than seven days prior to the date of such
general meeting and the minimum length of the period
during which such notices to the Company may be
given will be at least seven days.

Detailed procedures for shareholders to propose a
person for election as a Director are available on the
Company'’s website.

Constitutional Documents

There was no change to the Company’s constitutional
documents since the Listing Date. The Articles are
available on the websites of both the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

Enquiries to the Board

Enquiries may be put to the Board through the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong
at 26/F, Park Avenue Tower, 5 Moreton Terrace,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong (email: info@incon.hk).

(@)

DNEMERRRERN (F)

IRERAER (&)

REZIRMAIE 11315 - BRIFEES
HEEEN) BRIk LREES
S B ER A LA BRI
RAGLBREE  HEHHE@
BARPAEZRRERARBALERE
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BARAREEE XITEAQEE
MERICBP BRI - FHT
RRBAMHERE - A TERTH
BRAEEEE RRAGBREER
EETNERZBE KRG 877 HHA
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RIR - HERERWRE

We are pleased to present this Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG”) Report for the year ended 31 March
2019 in compliance with the applicable code provision set
out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide (the “ESG Guide”) as set out in Appendix 27 to the
Listing Rules. Information on the environmental and social
aspects of the report is set out below whilst information on
the governance aspect is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 30 to 44. During the year ended 31 March
2019, the Company has complied with the “comply or
explain” provisions set out in the ESG Guide.

We strive to offer our customers a high degree of service,
quality control and site management in all our foundation
and construction work. We are also committed to fulfill our
corporate social responsibility through working with the key
stakeholders including our employees, suppliers and sub-
contractors. We believe that the stakeholders’ interest must
be taken into account in order to enhance our relationship
with the society and other stakeholders. We have integrated
Environmental, Social and Governance considerations
into daily operations and we believe that our existing
businesses are not expected to pose a material impact on the
environment.

ENVIRONMENTAL
Emissions and use of resources

We place an emphasis on environmental protection when
undertaking our projects. Our environmental management
system is accredited with 1SO 14001. We have policies in
place to reduce emissions and waste. We conserve resources
for environmental and operating efficiency purposes.

Construction inert waste is disposed to public fill or other
project sites for reuse, while non-inert waste is reused and
recycled by qualified waste collectors. Wastewater is treated
by wastewater treatment plant on site and recycled within
site. Soak-away pit is adopted so as to avoid water discharge
out of sites. Our teams are encouraged to switch off idle
machineries to avoid energy wastage as well as greenhouse
gas emissions. Certain types of machinery are only used
during permitted hours to reduce noise impact to nearby
residents. We conduct regular air monitoring for Total
Suspended Particulates and noise monitoring for construction
noise levels around the sites to meet the prescribed standards.

BAMAZIEE_ZE—NAF=A=1+—
HEFEMRE HekER (RE-
HERES])®E LB R B
8% 27 HAMIRIE e REIAREIES]
([3]R3F - L2 RERIES!]) FrEER T
1B - REFEBRERES HEHER
BATX  MBEBEAHENERSRE
EMEMTEERRE - REBE-ZT
—NEFZA=Z+—HILFE ' AREEE
SFIRIE (e RERESIHANE [ TS
TLRRRE |53 ©

BABOERPMENERZRTIERAT
FRHUSEZRNRY - mEEEMRSE
2o RkMmEaREZRENE (BRI
WEE HEREYERN) —HEI(F B
THRMANEELEEE - HFBEIE - BRI
s ML & R EMRNERE - LA
BRFNENONS - HASRE  H8k
ERERAZMAZAEEESD - BRM
BIE - A RBEBE T WIRTEKE
RFE -

BiE

BEik & EREH

BEAEEB BERRBRE - BN
RIEE IR R G EBISO 140018 :F © F A
HIE TR REMAER - AR
BREBRATMOER -

B SERE Y BRI A A RER S EAIAE T
AR WER - JEEEEY A EIRE
YRERERRBRER © J5/KH5KE
BREATHREER THERER © 1M
RAEZKFIABRKRE TR - F s
BEGREERERS  BRREERAR
BIRUREREE - & THANBSERNVET
TEERREEA - RSB ERERD
BEFE - RMEHETHREEZEEZR
PERBITRLF MREREKT - ATFE
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ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)
Emissions and use of resources (continued)

We embrace the waste management principle of “Avoid,
Reduce, Reuse and Recycle”. Our project team ensures
efficient use of materials by well designed project plan and
avoid over-ordering by accurate forecast on quantities.
Excavated materials from construction sites are sorted,
segregated and reused as fill materials as much as possible.
Also, metal or timber materials for temporary works are re-
used and recycled among our construction sites if possible.
Through actively monitoring and managing the use of
resources, we aim to reduce our operating costs as well as
our carbon footprints.

Total Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Total Waste
Produced in the Year

RiE (&)
BRRERER ()

BRRSTERS5R MEER - BEYF
ARkERBAINEYMERLRA - IAE
FHEREBIS L RETAIE B & 8= BUEA
MR RBERTE N E - MR EBE
W - RPIBEREREMRIZIRENO YL
D8R REEREFERERA o ghsh - £7]
BEERT - BRES TAZEY & B sk AR L 7]
ARPHELRBBER RERER - BB
B EE R EEERER - HFIE ER
DICE KA A R B R ED -

g@%&?iﬁ%ﬁﬁk%i&ﬁﬁéi@ﬁ%
o B2

Intensity
(per HKS' million
project turnover

payment)
ZE(BEEAR
Emission/Waste Item Unit Amount HEEXES
By BEY HH B ¥E TFR)
GHG Emissions Scope 1 (Direct Emission) Tonnes CO_e 2,138 7
BERBHN gEN (EEHER WMo_ftiRE=E
Scope 2 (Energy Indirect Emission)  Tonnes COﬁ 175 1
&2 (R REZEH R WM-_EtREE
Total (Scope 1 & 2) Tonnes CO.e
Mt (BE1R2) WM_EtREE 2,313 8
Non-hazardous Waste  Solid Waste Tonnes
BEEEY ElBEREEY) i3 163 1
Total Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Total Waste ZFRERBHBLEERFELEREY
Produced in last year BE
Intensity
(per HKS$' million
project turnover
payment)
mE(BRE8ER
Emission/Waste Item Unit Amount HEEXES
By BEY EH B ¥E TFR)
GHG Emissions Scope 1 (Direct Emission) Tonnes CO.e 1,607 5
BREREBIN SEN (BB WM-ftiRE=E
Scope 2 (Energy Indirect Emission)  Tonnes Coﬁ 157 1
212 (R REEHE R WB-EtiREE
Total (Scope 1 & 2) Tonnes CO,e
s (BE1R2) M-EtixEE 1,764 6
Nor)-hazardous Waste  Solid Waste Tonnes
BEEEY El 48 REEY) g 307 1
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ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)
Emissions and use of resources (continued)

Total Resource Consumption in the Year

R (&)
BERRERER (8)
FREFHEEE

Intensity

(per HK$' million
project turnover

payment)
EE(BREBET

Resource Category Unit Amount HEEXR
ERER By 2E )
Electricity KWh 246,172 810
W) TR
Diesel Litres 817,858 2,682
S 7+
Water m3 14,714 21
K S F K
Total Resource Consumption in last year ZEEREREE

Intensity

(per HKS$' million
project turnover

payment)

ZE(BEEBR
Resource Category Unit Amount HEEER
ERER B ¥E %)
Electricity KWh 221,627 770
B F R
Diesel Litres 614,617 2,135
SE0m F
Water m? 6,287 22
K 3K
The Environment and Natural Resources RERAARER

Our operating activities are in compliance with applicable
environmental legislation and have no significant impact
on the environment and natural resources. We regularly
assess the environmental risks of our operation, and adopt
preventive measures as necessary to reduce the risks and
ensure the compliance of relevant laws and regulations.

When preparing the tender documents, we take into
consideration the environmental protection requirements
of potential customers as well as the relevant laws and
regulations in relation to environmental protection.
Throughout our operations, we comply with environmental
protection requirements (e.g. applicable environmental
legislation and BEAM Plus Scheme). In addition to regular
environmental protection inspections, our projects are under
close monitoring of independent environmental protection
consultants.

A& 2EBETERNRITRD - X
BHRBLRAEREREANTZE © B
TEHIRHA 28w R BRI AR - WIREUL
SR IERTHE AR - WHERETE
BOERER -

RARBUIRIE IR - B IZ BERPHIR
iR 2R R BBRERA AR R
IR o ERELENRE - HAETRERE
(P a3 fR B0 ERIRAR D) K AR IR IR ¥t 81) o
BEMETIRREES - RANBERXE
STRRRBE TR
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SOCIAL
Employment and Labor Practices

We consider employees as our valuable assets and we
consider a respectful and fair working environment to be vital
to the operation of the Group. We ensure strict compliance
with all relevant regulatory standards, particularly the
Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) in respect of recruitment, compensation, and dismissal.
We treat all the employees equally, and their employment,
remuneration and promotion will not be affected by their
social identities such as age, gender, marital status, family
status, gender orientation, race, nationality or religion.

Employees are entitled to annual leave, sick leave and
maternity leave. Employees enjoy provident fund scheme and
other benefits such as overtime allowance, subject to the
Group's policies. The level of compensation of our employees
is reviewed annually on a performance basis with reference to
the market standard. We motivate employees by promotion
and salary increment based on results of annual performance
appraisal, and to award discretionary bonus in addition to
basic salary.

Health and Safety

We are determined to ensure that all construction works
are carried out to achieve at practically high health and
safety standards. We consider health and safety at work
are the interests and responsibilities of both the Group and
employees. Employees are required to take reasonable care
for the health and safety of themselves and of others with a
view to maintaining an injury-free workplace.

We are accredited with OHSAS 18001 (Occupational Health
and Safety Assessment Series). All personnel shall comply
with all relevant health and safety legislation as well as the
requirements of OHSAS 18001.
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SOCIAL (continued)
Health and Safety (continued)

We have implemented a health and safety management
system at the headquarter and at construction sites. We
are committed to ensure that employees at all levels will
receive appropriate safety training and are competent to
carry out their safety duties. In particular, we provide site
specific induction training programs for employees and
subcontractors to enhance their safety awareness, allocate
safety officers to ensure that we satisfy the applicable
laws and regulations requirements. The health and safety
management system is carried out, monitored and reviewed
by our safety committee.

There were no non-compliance cases noted in relation to
health and safety laws and regulations during the year ended
31 March 2019.
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Result
Work Injury Statistics IERFEE #R
Work-related fatalities TEERERET
Number N 0
Rate (%) b R (%) 0
Work injury I%
Lost man-days BRIIEBE 0

Development and Training

We acknowledge the importance of training for the
development of our employees as well as our Group. We
provide appropriate training to enable employees to improve
their job performance and to prepare them for future
development in the Group. We believe this is a mutually
beneficial practice for achieving both personal and corporate
goals as a whole. In particular, induction sessions are provided
for the employees on the information of safety. On-going
safety training on the use of different machinery or toolbox
is provided on a regular basis and records of such training is
kept.
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SOCIAL (continued)
Labour Standards

We do not employ under-age employees, and we do not
engage in forced labour. We have implemented policies
and procedures to prevent, monitor and report the use of
child and forced labour. We expect our sub-contractors and
suppliers to adhere to the same standards of behavior when
working with us. We fully comply with relevant regulations
that prohibit child or forced labour.

Supply Chain Management

We evaluate and select suppliers and sub-contractors based
on a wide range of aspects and standards, including but not
limited to the professional qualification, services/products
quality, financial status and integrity. We also put much
emphasis on the legal compliance of their operations in
addition to cost consideration. We advocate the standards
and expectations in respect of environment issues and
labour practices to suppliers and sub-contractors, with the
expectation that they will uphold standards that are similar to
that of the Group.

Product and Service Responsibility

We have experience as a general and foundation contractor
serving the Hong Kong building and construction industries.
Over the last decades, we have completed projects both
for the public and private sectors. In respect of our existing
foundation business, we are a registered specialist contractor
in the categories of foundation, demolition, site formation
and ground investigation field works and registered general
building contractor with the Buildings Department and
are also on the list of approved suppliers of materials and
specialist contractors of the Development Bureau for public
works in the category of land piling (Group II).

We have achieved timely completion on all projects in
the past by good management, technical knowledge and
effective utilisation of plant, machinery and labour resources.
Apart from above, we also provide services in Design & Build
projects. We can offer our customers a high degree of service,
quality control and site management in all our foundation
and construction work and have the requisite knowledge
of work practices and safety procedures required by the
industry. We also pride ourselves on our high standard of
reports and presentations.

e (')

BIZEE

BHUEERAAKNFES - MEKERE
BE) o HMMMITHER RIER » DLk ~ BEfE
MIERFAETRRBAET - HIHHED
BEkEEEER M TIERESHERNTT
BIZE - BT ETRIERBE L LR
B ER BRI

ST R
BHPEZTHRREERE(BRETR
REZEER  RE/EREER  BHIRR
Ka(z) st REUEHER R B - B
TEBEKAS  ZFITEEEERZEN
ERBRBR - RAREHEBES B
ERERRIREE NS TEHRIEE N
¥ FEHRTEAEBBLAEREE -

ERnkEREEE

BB EIEARBESEEREETE
H—R R ETRRAEENER - 15
Ko HRMETRZBAL NI EKERNIE
B IR ETRESMS AE@
BEFEME FE B FERES L
Ho DR T A2 48 Bl A s i 25 PY i vl S il
—MRREAER - NV EERLHMITE
(BIH)WRAIAETIREYRERER R E
PIgcEm 2 -

BEBERIFHEIR - Rl AE R A B
MAKE  #BERBETER - RMIERE
SEARAABIRR © B L& - HAITFRR
AR ZER B RHIRT - RO EMAR
iR RRETETREFRES KT
BRRTS  MEEERMEEE  WHATT
EMEBERNTEERRZZRFALEMN
s o BT R R KR IR & AR R R 2

B e



51

RERFERBRAT] o 2019 FiH

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

BRiR - @ REREHE (8

SOCIAL (continued)
Anti-corruption

We aim to maintain high moral standards in conducting
businesses. We believe in fairness and honesty in business
dealing and we do not tolerate corruption, bribery,
extortion, money-laundering and other fraudulent activities
in connection with any of our business operations. Clear
guidelines and code of conduct in the staff handbook are
conveyed to the employees. We have also made available a
whistle-blowing reporting channel to report any suspected
fraud, malpractice, corruption, or any other unethical actions.

We have strictly adhered to relevant laws and regulations,
including the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201
of the Laws of Hong Kong). During the year ended 31 March
2019, there was no legal case or dispute in respect of bribery,
extortion, fraud or money laundering against employees of
the Group and the Group itself.

Community Investment

We recognise the need to participate in the community and
therefore we both encourage and motivate our employees to
better serve our community at work and during their personal
time. Employees are encouraged to participate in community
enhancement events such as volunteer and fundraising
activities etc.
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
In Construction Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
In Construction Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 60 to 155, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2019, the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash
flow statement for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2019 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”) together with any ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements
in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Contract accounting estimates

Refer to accounting policies (i) & (p)(i) and notes 4 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements

The Key Audit Matter

The Group recorded revenue from the provision
of foundation construction works in Hong Kong
totalling HK$305.1 million for the year ended 31
March 2019.

Contract revenue is recognised progressively
over time using output method, based on direct
measurements of the value of services delivered
or surveys of work performed and the estimated
total revenue for the contracts entered into by the
Group. Contract costs are recognised when work
is performed, together with any provisions for
expected contract losses. The recognition of revenue
and profit relies on management’s estimate of the
final outcome of each contract, which involves the
exercise of significant management judgement,
particularly in forecasting the costs to complete a
contract, in valuing contract variations, claims and
liquidated and ascertained damages, in estimating
the amount of expected losses and in assessing the
ability of the Group to deliver services according to
the agreed timetable.

We identified contract accounting estimates as a
key audit matter because the estimation of the
total contract revenue and total costs to complete
contracts is inherently subjective and requires
significant management judgement and estimation
and because errors in the forecast of contract
revenue and contract costs could result in a material
variance in the amount of profit or loss recognised
from contracts to date and, therefore, in the current
period.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit
Our audit procedures to assess contract accounting
estimates included the following:

3 assessing the design and implementation
of key internal controls over the contract
revenue recognition processes;

o discussing with management the
performance of all contracts in progress
during the year and challenging the key
estimates and assumptions adopted in
the forecast of contract revenue and
contract costs, including estimated costs
to completion, the recognition of variation
orders, the adequacy of contingency
provisions and the assessment of potential
liguidated and ascertained damages for
contracts which were behind schedule,
by obtaining and assessing information
in connection the assumptions adopted,
including contract agreements and
sub-contracts, correspondence with customers
regarding contract variations and claims and
by considering historical outcomes for similar
contracts;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

B ESE (E)

obtaining a detailed breakdown of the
total estimated costs to completion for all
contracts in progress during the year and
comparing, on a sample basis, actual costs
incurred at the reporting date and future
cost estimates with agreements, certifications
or correspondence with subcontractors and
suppliers and other documentation referred
to by management in its assessment of the
estimated costs to completion;

challenging the assumptions and critical
judgements made by management which
impacted their estimations of the liquidated
and ascertained damages assessments by
comparing the key terms and conditions in
the assessments with contract agreements
with customers and by comparing the
estimated contract completion time with
the Group’s updated progress report or
correspondence from customers;

comparing the contract revenue recognised
for all contracts in progress during the
year with certifications from the surveyors
appointed by the customers or payment
applications from the in-house surveyor;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

BERETSE A

conducting site visits, on a sample basis, to
observe the progress of individual contracts
and discussing with site personnel the status
of each project and evaluating whether the
project progress was consistent with the
agreed timetable and the Group’s financial
accounting records;

performing a retrospective review for
contracts completed during the current
year by comparing the final outcome of the
contracts with previous estimates made for
those contracts to assess the reliability of the
management’s forecasting process; and

inspecting a sample of contract agreements
with customers and subcontractors to
identify key terms and conditions, including
contracting parties, the contract period,
contract sum, the scope of work, the
methodology for calculating liquidated
and ascertained damages, and evaluating
whether these key terms and conditions
had been appropriately reflected in the total
estimated revenue and costs to complete in
the forecast of the outcome of the contract.
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR'S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included
in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable,
related safeguards.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Cheung Wing Han, Ivy.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

21 June 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meBEaRkEMaEElER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE—Z—NF=A=+—HIFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (LA L5 7R )

2019 2018
—E-hE —ZT—)\F
Note $'000 $'000
B 5 T Tt
(Note)
(P 3%)

Revenue W &= 4 305,128 287,846
Direct costs BERA (274,519) (251,418)
Gross profit EF 30,609 36,428
Other revenue H b g 25 5 6,183 10,851
Administrative and other TR R H At 8 2

operating expenses (24,282) (19,617)
Profit from operations mERF 12,510 27,662
Finance costs B & A AN 6(a) (90) (96)
Profit before taxation BR % A= R 6 12,420 27,566
Income tax FriS i 7(a) (1,851) (4,548)
Profit and total comprehensive  FREF R

income for the year ZHEWBABEE 10,569 23,018
Earnings per share BRER (BA)

(Hong Kong cents)
Basic and diluted E R R #E 10 1.3 2.8

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 at 1 April 2018. Under the
transition method chosen, comparative information is not restated. See

note 2(c).

The notes on pages 65 to 155 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividend payable to equity shareholders
of the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set
out in note 19(b).

izt : ARBR-_Z-N\FOA-HEREREEN
B ELERE155% o RIBPTERHBIETE
WEF LA R o BHTE2(C) °

SE65ZE 155 B MM E B A UL F M SRR 2
—HbD o FBERANF RN EN A AT
R IRIR IR B RIS E M EE19(b) ©
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR R

As at 31 March 2019 R=F—hFE=A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (LA TLF17R)

2019 2018
“BE-RE T N\HE
Note $000 $'000
B & Fr T
(Note)
(M &%)
Non-current assets FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENKRE 11 403 12,986
Finance lease receivables e B & F & 08 18(a) 16,857 -
Deferred tax assets BEERBEE 7(c)ii) 42 -
17,302 12,986
Current assets REEE
Contract assets BREE 16(a) 128,742 =
Gross amounts due from EREFEHIRE
customers for contract work WIA4EEE 15 = 105,892
Inventories EE 1,514 -
Finance lease receivables fEd R E S IE 18(a) 3,814 -
Trade and other receivables B 5 I E e IR 13 143,617 116,184
Tax recoverable AT Y B 7 18 7(c)(i) 3,574 16,649
Cash and bank balances e MIRITHEH 14(a) 45,611 68,035
326,872 306,760
Current liabilities nEAE
Contract liabilities AHEE 16(b) 2,238 -
Gross amounts due to ERNEFEHIRE
customers for contract work WIB4A%E 15 - 7,354
Trade and other payables B 5 N E M A OB 17 76,353 69,280
Obligations under finance leases REHEAE 18(b) 3,814 =
82,405 76,634
Net current assets regE®RE 0000 244,467 230,126
Total assets less current liabilities HBEERRBAE 261,769 243,112
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)
e MR RE (E)

Asat31 March 2019 R=ZE—hFE=A=+—H

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA7& 7T 517K )

2019 2018
—E-hE Z—Z-N\F
Note $'000 $'000
Bl aE Fr Fr
(Note)
(BT&E)
Non-current liabilities *RBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EERBEERE 7(c)(ii) = 1,250
Obligations under finance leases BE TS AR 18(b) 16,857 -
_______ 16857 . 1230

NET ASSETS EEFE 244,912 241,862

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXRRE 19
Share capital [N 19(c) 8,300 8,300
Reserves i 236,612 233,562
TOTAL EQUITY e 244,912 241,862

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors HEZEER -_ZT—AE A -+—BH#LE

on 21 June 2019. KA T3 -
Lau Pak Man Cheng Wing Cheong ZExX BB S
Director Director o EE
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 at 1 April 2018. Under the Mzt : AEER-Z—/\FHA-BEXEAEEN
transition method chosen, comparative information is not restated. See HIREERFE 155 o RIBFMEENBERE -
note 2(c). WSS L ERER - RHTFF2(0)

The notes on pages 65 to 155 form part of these financial 28652 1558 MMl sE#& Ak Itk Z B S RK 2
statements. —#5 o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FERREER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE T —NF=A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (LA 757K )

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
KAARRERREN
Share Share Capital  Retained Total
capital  premium reserve profits equity

Bx  ER#EE B4R RERN 48

Note $'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000
iz Tr Tr Tr Tr Tr
At 1 April 2017 RZE-tEMA-H 8,300 75453 (35952) 278,943 326,744
Changes in equity for 2018: “E-\ERE2E:
Profit and total comprehensive  EREH K2 ERALE
income for the year - - - 23,018 23,018
Dividend approved in respect of  BEECHERKE
the previous year 19(b)(i) - - - (83,000) (83,000)
Dividend approved in respect of  FLERIFEEHERRE
the current year 19(b)ii) - - - (24,900) (24,900)
At 31 March 2018 (Note) R=B-NF=ZA=+-H
(Bit3E) 8300 75453  (35952) 194,061 241862
Impact on initial application BRERB BT RS LS
of HKFRS 15 F155% 2 2 20 = = = (71519 (7519
Adjusted balance as at RZE-NE@A-RAZ
1 April 2018 DAL 8,300 75,453 (35,952) 186,542 234,343
Change in equity for 2019: “E-NEEREH:

Profit and total comprehensive AN e N
income for the year - -

10,569 10,569

At 31 March 2019 R=B-AFZA=+-H 8,300 75453 (35952) 197,11 244,912

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 at 1 April 2018. Under the Mzt : AEER=ZZ—/\FHA—BERERESY

transition method chosen, comparative information is not restated. See TR 2R SE155% o RIRFTRIBAMAE 50X
note 2(c). WSS ERER - B2 -

The notes on pages 65 to 155 form part of these financial ~ £565Z 1558 B s #E A It FE I F TR T 2
statements. — I o
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
GEHERER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE—Z—NF=A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA7& 70517 )

2019 2018
ZE-hE ZZN\F
Note $'000 $'000
B 5 Tr T
)
(P 3E)
Cash (used in)/generated from & (FrR) /FRBES
operations 14(b) (37,854) 109,664
Tax refund/(paid) RE/ (B BIE 11,419 (27,300)
Net cash (used in)/generated from &eSTE (FRA) e
operating activities REFE (26,435) 82,364
Investing activities REES
Payment for the purchase of RBENE  BEX
property, plant and equipment BTN EN (50) (702)
Proceeds from sale of property, HEME  BERSELZ
plant and equipment P15 SUE 3,400 2,548
Interest received 2 WA 8 708 796
Capital element of finance EHRERERS
lease rentals received BATLR = 1,201
Interest element of finance 2R ERERS 2
lease rentals received MBETE - 14
Decrease in restricted bank deposits ZIRHISBITERR LD 10,718 11,615
Net cash generated from investing REFZHFEHELTEE
activities 14,776 15,472
Financing activities BEEE
Interest paid for bank loan BITEFZEMNFE 14(c) - (82)
Capital element of finance BENmMEHRERS 2
leases rentals paid BARTE 14(c) - (1,201)
Interest element of finance ENRERERS 2
leases rentals paid FBETE 14(c) - (14)
Dividends paid 2% & - (107,900)
Repayment of bank loan BERITER 14(c) = (5,116)
Interest paid for bank overdrafts BTELZENFE (47) -
Net cash used in financing activities B&EZ@FARSEE (47)  (114,313)
Net decrease in cash and RERREEEBYRDBE
cash equivalents (11,706) (16,477)
Cash and cash equivalents EYNEERESZEY
at the beginning of the year 20,542 37,019
Cash and cash equivalents EXRNEERESZEY
at the end of the year 14(a) 8,836 20,542
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 at 1 April 2018. Under the  Fiizt : AEBER=_Z— \FUA—BERXERAESH
transition method chosen, comparative information is not restated. See RS 2R 1555 o IRIBFTEEENBE A
note 2(c). WSS LR ER - RHiFE2(c)

The notes on pages 65 to 155 form part of these financial — Z565Z 1558 &M s I Z B SRz >
statements. —#m o
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Notes to the Financial Statements
s E

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (A7 72511 7R )

1 GENERAL INFORMATION 1

In Construction Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) are principally engaged as a contractor in the
foundation industry in Hong Kong. The Company was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability on 29 September 2014
under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Stock
Exchange on 16 April 2015.

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange. Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group. Note 2(c) provides information on
any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the
current and prior accounting periods reflected in
these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B S R R M = (AR

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (LA TL717R)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2019 comprise the Company
and its subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 3.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R SR B & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (LA TLFI7R)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs
and amendments to HKFRSs that are first
effective for the current accounting period of the
Group. Of these, the following developments are
relevant to the Group'’s financial statements:

- HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

- HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers

The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period.

The Group has been impacted by HKFRS 9 in
relation to measurement of credit losses, and
impacted by HKFRS 15 in relation to timing of
recognition of contract costs and presentation of
contract assets and contract liabilities. Details of
the changes in accounting policies are discussed
in note 2(c)(i) for HKFRS 9 and note 2(c)(ii) for
HKFRS 15.

Under the transition method chosen, the Group
recognises cumulative effect of the initial
application of HKFRS 15 as an adjustment to
the opening balance of equity at 1 April 2018,
comparative information is not restated.

(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39, Financial
instruments: recognition and measurement.
HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for
classification and measurement of financial
assets, including the measurement of
impairment for financial assets. The Group
has been impacted by HKFRS 9 in relation
to measurement of impairment for financial
assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B S R R M = (AR

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (LA TL717R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EXRZEHXR(E)

(continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies ()
(continued)

(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

(continued)

The new impairment model in HKFRS
9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in
HKAS 39 with an “expected credit loss”
("ECL") model. Under the ECL model,
it will no longer be necessary for a loss
event to occur before an impairment loss is
recognised. Instead, an entity is required to
recognise and measure either a 12-month
ECL or a lifetime ECL, depending on the
asset and the facts and circumstances. The
application of the ECL model results in
earlier recognition of credit losses, but with
no material financial impact to the Group.

(ii) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts

with customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive
framework for recognising revenue and
some costs from contracts with customers.
HKFRS 15 replaces HKAS 18, Revenue,
which covered revenue arising from sale of
goods and rendering of services, and HKAS
11, Construction contracts, which specified
the accounting for construction contracts.

HKFRS 15 also introduces additional
qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements which aim to enable users of
the financial statements to understand the
nature, amount, timing and uncertainty
of revenue and cash flows arising from
contracts with customers.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R SR B & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (LA TLFI7R)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies

(continued)

(i)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts
with customers (continued)

The Group has elected to use the
cumulative effect transition method and
has recognised the cumulative effect of
initial application as an adjustment to
the opening balance of equity at 1 April
2018. Therefore, comparative information
has not been restated and continues to
be reported under HKAS 11 and HKAS
18. As allowed by HKFRS 15, the Group
has applied the new requirements only to
contracts that were not completed before
1 April 2018.

The following table summarises the impact
of transition to HKFRS 15 on retained
profits and the related tax impact at 1 April
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Change in timing of contract MEESNEREHRAZ
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at 1 April 2018 REBE AR FRE (7,519)
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B S R R M = (AR

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (LA TL717R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies ()

(continued)

(ii) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts
with customers (continued)
Further details of the nature and effect
of the changes on previous accounting
policies are set out below:

(@  Timing of revenue recognition
Previously, revenue arising from
construction contracts was recognised
over time.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is
recognised when the customer
obtains control of the promised
good or service in the contract. This
may be at a single point in time
or over time. HKFRS 15 identifies
the following three situations in
which control of the promised
good or service is regarded as being
transferred over time:

A.  When the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the
entity’s performance, as the
entity performs;

B.  When the entity’s performance
creates or enhances an asset
(for example work in progress)
that the customer controls
as the asset is created or
enhanced;
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R SR B & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (LA TLFI7R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EXEFTBUER ()
(continued)

C.  When the entity’s performance
does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the
entity and the entity has an
enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to
date.

If the contract terms and the entity’s
activities do not fall into any of these
3 situations, then under HKFRS 15
the entity recognises revenue for
the sale of that good or service at
a single point in time, being when
control has passed. Transfer of
risks and rewards of ownership is
only one of the indicators that is
considered in determining when the
transfer of control occurs.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 does not
have a significant impact on when
the Group recognises revenue from
construction contracts (see note 2(p)(i)).

(c) Changes in accounting policies (0 EBFEEZ2F (#)
(continued)
(i) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts (i) BBUBEREAEAES
with customers (continued) 8o EFEAWKE (&)
(@)  Timing of revenue recognition (@ W MR A EF ]
(continued) (&)
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B S R R M = (AR

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (LA TL717R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies
(continued)

(ii) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts
with customers (continued)

(b)

Timing of recognition of contract
costs

Under HKFRS 15, if the costs
incurred in fulfilling a contract with
a customer are not within the scope
of another standard, assets shall only
be recognised if the costs incurred
(i) relate directly to a contract or
an anticipated contract that can be
specifically identified; (ii) generate or
enhance resources of the entity that
will be used in satisfying performance
obligations in the future; and (iii) are
expected to be recovered. Costs
that relate to satisfied performance
obligations (or partially satisfied
performance obligations) in the
contracts and costs for which an
entity cannot distinguish whether
the costs relate to unsatisfied
performance obligations or to
satisfied performance obligations
shall be expensed as incurred under
HKFRS 15.

If at any time the costs to complete
the contract are estimated to
exceed the remaining amount of the
consideration under the contract,
then a provision of onerous contract
is recognised.
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B R MR (AR

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (LA TLFI7R)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies
(continued)

(ii) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts
with customers (continued)

(b)

Timing of recognition of contract
costs (continued)

Previously, contract costs of the
Group were recognised by reference
to the stage of completion of the
contract, which was measured
with reference to the progress
certificates issued by the customers
or payment applications submitted
to the customers. Contract costs
were deferred or accrued to report
a consistent margin percentage over
the term of a contract. Under HKFRS
15, contract costs that related to
satisfied performance obligations are
expensed as incurred.

As a result of this change in
accounting policy, the Group had
made adjustments to opening
balances at 1 April 2018 which
decreased retained profits by
$7,519,000, decreased contract
assets by $9,006,000 and increased
tax recoverable by $1,487,000.

2

BEREHHE (&)

(0 BFEEz23 (&)

(i) FBUBHELEAES
B FFEA W (1K)
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A 49 1) 78 R PR BR
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EXRZEHXR(E)

(continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (©

(continued)

(i) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts
with customers (continued)
(©)  Presentation of contract assets and

liabilities

Under HKFRS 15, a receivable is
recognised only if the Group has an
unconditional right to consideration.
If the Group recognises the related
revenue (see note 2(p)) before
receiving the consideration or
being unconditionally entitled to
the consideration for the promised
goods and services in the contract,
then the entitlement to consideration
is classified as a contract asset.
Similarly, a contract liability, rather
than a payable, is recognised when
a customer pays consideration,
or is contractually required to pay
consideration and the amount is
already due, before the Group
recognises the related revenue. For
a single contract with the customer,
either a net contract asset or a net
contract liability is presented. For
multiple contracts, contract assets
and contract liabilities of unrelated
contracts are not presented on a net
basis (see note 2(i)).

Previously, contract balances
relating to construction contracts
in progress were presented in the
statement of financial position
under “Gross amounts due from
customers for contract work” or the
“Gross amounts due to customers
for contract work” respectively.
Receivables for which the Group's
entitlement to the consideration
was conditional on achieving
certain milestones or satisfactory
completion of the retention period
were presented in the statement
of financial position as “Retentions
receivable” under “Trade and other
receivables”.

B REZ2D (8

EBMBMEERSE15
W BEFEA WK (&)

(c)

EHEEREE

S
afs

F
W
i
I
[l 0| 2H i ot O

2
%
B B H T 5 5 B 5

2y
o A B
Bif

L
i

RIEHJR

“mgamki$ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ>;”
T 3 LD
E[ﬁ:) =)
op

=

— W
=T ok
cy

>t

o

j 0
}Eﬂ:
o BREIHEMS FH -
i eSS

N

EMIR -

|
=z
L3

Bk

i
=
=

2SS

=t o
. ﬁ?‘r>
B
St

juni)

o I D B
- m3 T
R Xt 29
PR

oo 3k
N

- @b Tb b 9 5 3 6

Pl
&)

325

by

g1y

- &F
p 2 0
O s
| - 2Z&

S 33 fmF MO 485 ¢

mﬁwﬂymzm
el

FMDHH]\

T
/

ol
34 B

p
5

B
A T =
o 3 1>
,3)

| SO
a
EON
Ar

2o o

5000 25 1 N 2525 2508 S 8 B Xt 5 B D 2
=R 2F
B Bt my 1>

Ho = oy 7 S5 m

N
=
=
° N\l

RRET B K
Hip skl T
E25 5 BUIRE

] e



75
RERFERBRAT » 2019 FiHk

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R SR B & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (LA TLFI7R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EBERESETEHEGE)
(continued)

() Changes in accounting policies (0 SFBERzZ25 (&)

(continued)

(i) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts (i) FBHBREERES
with customers (continued) 5 BEFEA W ()
() Presentation of contract assets and © BHEEREE

liabilities (continued) 2 5 (#8)

To reflect these changes in E A E S

presentation, the Group has made WEEAES

the following adjustments at 1 April 0 ORRMZE

2018, as a result of the adoption of 25|88 KK

HKFRS 15: BER=_ZT—N\F

mA—B{EHNI
T

a. "“Gross amounts due from a. [BEZKRH
customers for contract work” ff, FE U 3K
and “Retentions receivable” H] T/
under “Trade and other [EKREF
receivables” amounting to a8 I’
$93,037,000 and $7,803,000 FRIE 42 F |
respectively, are now included K T P& W=
under contract assets; Bel®

o hl A
93,037,000
JC ®
7,803,000
TR, A
BHEEE
T

b. “Gross amounts due to b. [ERNEF
customers for contract work” EHTRE
amounting to $7,354,000 are SR8 42 5 |
now included under contract 7,354,000
liabilities; TTHRAANE

“aEHE
T

c.  “Gross amounts due from c [EBREF
customers for contract work” EHITE
amounting to $3,849,000 FRIE 4R ]
are now included under 3,849,000
“Inventories”; and I N

[F&]E
T &

d.  As explained in (b) above, d. @tk 3(b)
adjustments to opening PRt - HA
balances have been made to EERIER
decrease contract assets by HELSEH
$9,006,000. EERD

9,006,000

JT ©
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies
(continued)

(ii) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts
with customers (continued)

(@)

Disclosure of the estimated impact
on the amounts reported in respect
of the year ended 31 March 2019 as
a result of the adoption of HKFRS 15
on 1 April 2018

The following tables summarise
the estimated impact of adoption
of HKFRS 15 on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March
2019, by comparing the amounts
reported under HKFRS 15 in these
consolidated financial statements
with estimates of the hypothetical
amounts that would have been
recognised under HKAS 18 and
HKAS 11 if those superseded
standards had continued to apply
to 2019 instead of HKFRS 15. These
tables show only those line items
impacted by the adoption of HKFRS
15:

EXRSHBE(E)

BB 228 (H)

BEAMEREERSES
% BEAA W (H)

(d)

HER-_ZFE—/N
F g H— HRA
BB & E
B E 155 41 & =
—EF—NF=H
=+ —HUEEF
FE2#p 52
1Hat &
RPN S
785 B 75 3R 5 2E Al
FI5% H A E
BEHEZE—Z—Ah
F=HA=+—H
IEFEREGRE T
R 2 (AT
2. 5 AR
BRBMBEHRE
B 51558 R 47
A HRE 2R
7 & 58t 8 R &
EAE G ERSE
18R R BB G
A B 1158 R fE
R RE
5% R
LW ER LRI
T -NFEE
FER (MmEEAE
7 B 15 3R 5 2E )
FE155%) ° 1LEF
REBRI IR
MBS RS
e B 51555 2 &
WEEHER
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EXEFTBUER ()
(continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (0 EBFEEZ2F (#)
(continued)
(i) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts (i) BBUBEREAEAES
with customers (continued) 8o EFEAWKE (&)
(d)  Disclosure of the estimated impact (d HER-ZF—/
on the amounts reported in respect FPH—HERWA
of the year ended 31 March 2019 as BB & E
a result of the adoption of HKFRS 15 RIE155% 41 # =
on 1 April 2018 (continued) —E—ANF=A
=F+—HIFE
E#R2EZ G
G ()

Difference:

Estimated

Amounts  Hypothetical impact of

reported in  amounts under adoption of

accordance HKASs 18 HKFRS 15

with HKFRS 15 and 11 on 2019

EE:

RE RIB-ME

BREBNE EESHEN FREAME
RERFFESE BISRRENE REEDF15H
SHNEE HRRHLE fiss e

(A) (B) (A)- (B)
$'000 $'000 $'000
ST ST r
Line items in the SHRMERNBREE
consolidated statement AIEISHYENEE
of profit or loss and other —E-AE=f=+-—
comprehensive income for  AILEEGABHERE
the year ended 31 March 2 EHNERNEHIE
2019 impacted by the B:
adoption of HKFRS 15:
Direct costs ERKA (274,519) (265,900) (8619)
Gross profit E 30,609 39,228 (8,619)
Profit from operations FE Pyl 12,510 21,129 (8,619)
Profit before taxation BB AER 12,420 21,039 (8,619)
Income tax G (1,851) (3,.273) 1422
Profit and total FERBEFR
comprehensive income 2EUAEE
for the year 10,569 17,766 (7,197)
Earnings per share BREF (E)
(Hong Kong cents)

Basic and diluted HALEE 13 2.1 (0.8)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EXE5TEE (E)
(continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies () EFtBERz2E (&)

(continued)

(i) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts (i) BFBEMKEREERES
with customers (continued) 8 EEEAWKZ (])
(d)  Disclosure of the estimated impact (d HBER-ZF—/N

on the amounts reported in respect FPH— HIRAW
of the year ended 31 March 2019 as & BB R E
a result of the adoption of HKFRS 15 RIE 155 41 # =
on 1 April 2018 (continued) —EF—NF=H
=F+—HIFE
FE2HLEZ G
AT E ()
Difference:
Estimated
Amounts  Hypothetical impact of
reported in  amounts under adoption of
accordance HKASs 18 HKFRS 15
with HKFRS 15 and 11 on 2019
EH:
RE R-B-N%F
RREANE BAEHEN RAEEHE
HEEUSSE BBRRENE REEHF15H
2ENEE  NBRUEE fik e
(A) (B) (A)-(B)
$'000 $'000 $'000
Tr Fr Tr
Line items in the ZURMEBRUBREE
consolidated statement BB YEN_E
of financial position -NEZR=1-R&
as at 31 March 2019 FHBERRRMETE
impacted by the B:
adoption of HKFRS 15:
Contract assets ANBE 128,742 = 128,742
Gross amounts due from EYRFPAHIRE
customers for contract work HEEE - 128,143 (128,143)
Inventories BE 1,514 - 1,514
Trade and other receivables 2 5 Rk £t fE A 143,617 163,355 (19,738)
Tax recoverable o REHE 3,574 665 2,909
Total current assets RBEELE 326,872 341,588 (14,716)
Contract liabilities ahEE 2,238 = 2,238
Gross amounts due to ENEEAHTIR
customers for contract work  FIB4EEE = 2,238 (2,238)
Total current liabilities RBEELE 82,405 82,405 =
Net current assets RBEERE 244,467 259,183 (14,716)
Total assets less HEERRDAE
current liabilities 261,769 276,485 (14,716)
Net assets EERE 244,912 259,628 (14,716)
Reserves @ 236,612 251,328 (14,716)
Total equity wEx 24912 250,628 (14.716)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EAXEFEX (&)
(continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (0 EBFEEZ2F (#)
(continued)
(i) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts (i) BBUBEREAEAES

B FFEA W (1K)

with customers (continued)

(d)  Disclosure of the estimated impact (d HER-ZF—/
on the amounts reported in respect FPH—HERWA
of the year ended 31 March 2019 as BB & E
a result of the adoption of HKFRS 15 RIE155% 41 # =
on 1 April 2018 (continued) —E—ANF=A

=F+—HIFE
2R EZ G
T E(E)
Difference:
Estimated
Amounts  Hypothetical impact of
reported in  amounts under adoption of
accordance HKASs 18 HKFRS 15
with HKFRS 15 and 11 on 2019
EE.
RE R-B-1f
BREENE BHBEHER ﬁ?ﬂ?%ﬂﬂ%
RERYZSHE FBERENE RERYF15H
2HENEE  NBRESE e
(A) (B) (A)-(B)
$'000 $000 $'000
Fr Tr Fr
Line items in the ZHRAEBHBREE
reconciliation of RIS ENEBZE=
profit before taxation E-AE=R=1-H
to cash generated from L F BB ADE R B
operations for the year BIHMEREHEN
ended 31 March 2019 BMER (KE14(b)
(note 14(b)) impacted
by the adoption of
HKFRS 15:
Profit before taxation BB RS A 12,420 21,039 (8,619)
Increase in trade and 25 R E A
other receivables N (32,636) (44,571) 11,935
Increase in gross amounts ~ EREFANTRE
due from customers BB
for contract work - (22,251) 22,251
Increase in contract assets ~ AAEEE N (27,902) - (27,902)
Decrease in inventories BERD 2335 - 2335
Decrease in contract liabilities 4 #18 &4 (5.116) - (5,116)
Decrease in gross amounts ~ EREEA4TE
due to customers FOREER D
for contract work - (5,116) 5,116
The significant differences arise as a Pt e
result of the changes in accounting B EAERNER -

policies described above.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(d) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group
and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements from
the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases. Intra-group balances,
transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in that former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost
less impairment losses (see note 2(g)), unless
the investment is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale).

2
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(d)
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see note 2(g)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised
in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the straight
line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

- Furniture and fixtures 5 years
- Leasehold improvements Shorter of
lease term

and 5 years

- Motor vehicles 3'/3 years
- Plant and machinery 5 years
- Office equipment 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost
of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis
between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

2

BEREHHE (&)

(e)

M BRE KRB TR AR
2 E RBEEESIE (R
Fi5E2(g)) ©

WEELHEWE - BB K&RE
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys
a right to use a specific asset or assets for an
agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is
made based on an evaluation of the substance of
the arrangement and is regardless of whether the
arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(f)

(@

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the
Group

Assets that are held by the Group under
leases which transfer to the Group
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of
assets under finance leases, the amounts
representing the fair value of the leased
asset, or, if lower, the present value of
the minimum lease payments, of such
assets are included in property, plant
and equipment and the corresponding
liabilities, net of finance charges, are
recorded as obligations under finance
leases. Depreciation is provided at rates
which write off the cost or valuation of the
assets over the term of the relevant lease
or, where it is likely the Group will obtain
ownership of the asset, the life of the
asset, as set out in note 2(e). Impairment
losses are accounted for in accordance
with the accounting policy as set out in
note 2(g). Finance charges implicit in the
lease payments are charged to profit or
loss over the period of the leases so as
to produce an approximately constant
periodic rate of charge on the remaining
balance of the obligations for each
accounting period. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

2
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Leased assets (continued)

0

(iii)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets
held under operating leases, payments
made under the leases are charged to
profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased
asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to
profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

(g) Credit losses and impairment of

assets

(0]

Credit losses from financial
instruments and contract assets
(A)  Policy applicable from 1 April 2018

The Group recognises a loss allowance
for ECLs on the following items:

- financial assets measured at
amortised cost (including cash
and bank balances and trade
and other receivables); and

- contract assets as defined in
HKFRS 15 (see note 2(i)).

2
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(g) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial
instruments and contract assets
(continued)

A)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2018
(continued)

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses. Credit
losses are measured as the present
value of all expected cash shortfalls
(i.e. the difference between the
cash flows due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are
discounted using the following
discount rates where the effect of
discounting is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets,
trade and other receivables
and contract assets: effective
interest rate determined
at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof; and

- variable-rate financial assets:
current effective interest rate.

The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over
which the Group is exposed to credit
risk.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(g) Credit losses and impairment of

assets (continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial
instruments and contract assets
(continued)

(A)  Policy applicable from 1 April 2018
(continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

In measuring ECLs, the Group
takes into account reasonable and
supportable information that is
available without undue cost or
effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are
losses that are expected to
result from possible default
events within the 12 months
after the reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses
that are expected to result
from all possible default events
over the expected lives of the
items to which the ECL model
applies.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(g) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial
instruments and contract assets
(continued)

A)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2018
(continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

Loss allowances for trade receivables,
retentions receivable and contract
assets are always measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
ECLs on these financial assets are
estimated using a provision matrix
based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the
debtors and an assessment of both
the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the reporting
date.

For all other financial instruments,
the Group recognises a loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECLs
unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk of the financial
instrument since initial recognition,
in which case the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(g) Credit losses and impairment of

assets (continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial
instruments and contract assets
(continued)

(A)  Policy applicable from 1 April 2018
(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit
risk of a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares
the risk of default occurring on the
financial instrument assessed at the
reporting date with that assessed
at the date of initial recognition. In
making this reassessment, the Group
considers that a default event occurs
when (i) the borrower is unlikely
to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held);
or (i) the financial asset is 90 days
past due. The Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking
information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following
information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly since
initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of
principal or interest on their
contractually due dates;
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(g) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial
instruments and contract assets
(continued)

A)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2018
(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

(continued)

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial
instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

= an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes
in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment
that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability
to meet its obligation to the
Group.

Depending on the nature of the
financial instruments, the assessment
of a significant increase in credit
risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis.
When the assessment is performed
on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics,
such as past due status and credit
risk ratings.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(g) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial
instruments and contract assets
(continued)

A)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2018
(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk
(continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each
reporting date to reflect changes
in the financial instrument’s credit
risk since initial recognition. Any
change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss. The Group
recognises an impairment gain or
loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to
their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in
accordance with note 2(p)(iii) is
calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial
asset unless the financial asset
is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based
on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance)
of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group
assesses whether a financial asset is
credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset have
occurred.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(g) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial
instruments and contract assets
(continued)

A)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2018
(continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income
(continued)

Evidence that a financial asset
is credit-impaired includes the
following observable events:

significant financial difficulties
of the debtor;

a breach of contract, such as
a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

it becoming probable that
the borrower will enter into
bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

significant changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have
an adverse effect on the debtor.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(g) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial
instruments and contract assets
(continued)

(A)  Policy applicable from 1 April 2018
(continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a
financial asset or contract asset is
written off (either partially or in full)
to the extent that there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. This is generally
the case when the Group determines
that the debtor does not have assets
or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts subject to the
write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset
that was previously written off
are recognised as a reversal of
impairment in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.

(B)  Policy applicable prior to 1 April
2018

Prior to 1 April 2018, an “incurred
loss” model was used to measure
impairment losses on financial
assets not classified as at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVPL")
(e.g. trade and other receivables).
Under the “incurred loss” model, an
impairment loss was recognised only
when there was objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of
impairment included:
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(g) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial
instruments and contract assets
(continued)

(B)

Policy applicable prior to 1 April
2018 (continued)

- significant financial difficulties
of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as
a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the
debtor will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation;
and

- significant changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have
an adverse effect on the debtor.

If any such evidence existed, for
trade and other receivables and
other financial assets carried at
amortised cost, impairment loss is
measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted
at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate, where the
effect of discounting is material.
This assessment is made collectively
where these financial assets shared
similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and have
not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for
financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based
on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to the collective group.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(g) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial
instruments and contract assets
(continued)

(B)

Policy applicable prior to 1 April
2018 (continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount
of an impairment loss decreased
and the decrease could be linked
objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss was
reversed through profit or loss. A
reversal of an impairment loss shall
not result in the asset’s carrying
amount exceeding that which would
have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in
prior years.

Impairment losses were written off
against the corresponding assets
directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade
debtors included within trade and
other receivables, whose recovery
was considered doubtful but not
remote. In this case, the impairment
losses for doubtful debts were
recorded using an allowance amount.
When the Group was satisfied that
recovery was remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable was written
off against trade debtors directly and
any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt were
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged to the
allowance account were reversed
against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly were
recognised in profit or loss.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EXRZEHXR(E)

(continued)
(g) Credit losses and impairment of (9

assets (continued)

(ii) Credit losses from financial guarantees
issued
Financial guarantees are contracts that
require the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to
make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of
a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees issued are initially
recognised within “trade and other
payables” at fair value, which is
determined by reference to fees charged
in an arm’s length transaction for similar
services, when such information is
obtainable, or to interest rate differentials,
by comparing the actual rates charged
by lenders when the guarantee is made
available with the estimated rates that
lenders would have charged, had the
guarantees not been available, where
reliable estimates of such information can
be made. Where consideration is received
or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is recognised
in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received
or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the
amount initially recognised as deferred
income is amortised in profit or loss over
the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(g) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (continued)

Credit losses from financial guarantees
issued (continued)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2018

The Group monitors the risk that
the specified debtor will default
on the contract and recognises a
provision when ECLs on the financial
guarantees are determined to be
higher than the amount carried
in “trade and other payables” in
respect of the guarantees (i.e. the
amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation).

To determine ECLs, the Group
considers changes in the risk of
default of the specified debtor
since the issuance of the guarantee.
A 12-month ECL is measured
unless the risk that the specified
debtor will default has increased
significantly since the guarantee is
issued, in which case a lifetime ECL
is measured. The same definition of
default and the same assessment of
significant increase in credit risk as
described in note 2(g)(i) apply.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(g) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (continued)

(ii) Credit losses from financial guarantees
issued (continued)

A)

(B)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2018
(continued)

As the Group is required to make
payments only in the event of a
default by the specified debtor in
accordance with the terms of the
instrument that is guaranteed,
an ECL is estimated based on the
expected payments to reimburse the
holder for a credit loss that it incurs
less any amount that the Group
expects to receive from the holder of
the guarantee, the specified debtor
or any other party. The amount is
then discounted using the current
risk-free rate adjusted for risks
specific to the cash flows.

Policy applicable prior 1 April 2018

Prior to 1 April 2018, a provision
would be recognised if and when it
became probable that (i) the holder
of the guarantee would call upon
the Group under the guarantee
and (ii) the amount of the claim on
the Group was expected to exceed
the amount carried in “trade and
other payables” in respect of the
guarantee.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EXEFTBUER ()
(continued)

(g) Credit losses and impairment of (9 GEFEREERMEGE)
assets (continued)

(iii) Impairment of other non-current assets (iii) HaFERBEERE
Internal and external sources of REERSRERARSE
information are reviewed at the end B A F6 K& o 56 & R
of each reporting period to identify R ARENTEER
indications that the following assets BEEREDR 3kt
may be impaired or, an impairment loss AIER AR EEIEES
previously recognised no longer exists or NEFERA B &R
may have decreased: A
= property, plant and equipment; and - "ME BEER®

R
—  investment in subsidiaries in the —  AAFEFBEMR
Company’s statement of financial AR E R A
position. wE o
If any such indication exists, the asset’s i FEAER] i -
recoverable amount is estimated. BIEER I E 5
TiaEt o
—  Calculation of recoverable amount —  FrEAKESEE
The recoverable amount of an asset BERMYE S
is the greater of its fair value less BAEQNTER
costs of disposal and value in use. In & Bk A8 A5 A
assessing value in use, the estimated BEME ZHE
future cash flows are discounted to I e ]
their present value using a pre-tax EHREAERR g
discount rate that reflects current % R g 5
market assessments of the time HEBKHEEE
value of money and the risks specific & = E R
to the asset. Where an asset does 2T fily B9 A% A1 85 3R
not generate cash inflows largely 5l FT R 2K
independent of those from other ReEREKRRE
assets, the recoverable amount is HBE -HEE
determined for the smallest group WHREARR L
of assets that generates cash inflows BYREME E
independently (i.e. a cash-generating FrEERE SR
unit). A 0 B LA BE 9B
EERSRAD
RNEBEMHR (B
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(g) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (continued)

(iii) Impairment of other non-current assets
(continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss if the carrying amount
of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated
to reduce the carrying amount of
the assets in the unit (or group of
units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will
not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss
is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been
determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the
year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(9)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of
assets (continued)

(iv) Interim financial reporting and

impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange, the
Group is required to prepare an interim
financial report in compliance with HKAS
34, Interim financial reporting, in respect
of the first six months of the financial
year. At the end of the interim period,
the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria
as it would at the end of the financial year
(see notes 2(g)(i) and (ii)).

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in
the ordinary course of business, in the process
of production for such sale or in the form of
materials or supplies to be consumed in the
production process or in the rendering of
services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out
method and comprises all costs of purchase,
costs of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount
of those inventories is recognised as an expense
in the period in which the related revenue is
recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h)

()

Inventories (continued)

The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period
the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the
period in which the reversal occurs.

Contract assets and contract liabilities
Policy applicable from 1 April 2018

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue (see note 2(p)) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration
under the payment terms set out in the
contract. Contract assets are assessed for ECL in
accordance with the policy set out in note 2(g)(i)
and are reclassified to receivables when the right
to the consideration has become unconditional
(see note 2())).

A contract liability is recognised when the
customer pays consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue (see note 2(p)).
A contract liability would also be recognised if
the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognised (see note

2(j)-

For a single contract with the customer, either
a net contract asset or a net contract liability is
presented. For multiple contracts, contract assets
and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are
not presented on a net basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

0]

()

(k)

Contract assets and contract liabilities

(continued)
Policy prior to 1 April 2018

In the comparative period, contract balances
were recorded for construction contracts at the
net amount of costs incurred plus recognised
profit less recognised losses and progress
billings. These net balances were presented in
the statement of financial position as the “gross
amounts due from customers for contract
work” (as an asset) or the “gross amounts
due to customers for contract work” (as a
liability), as applicable on a contract-by-contract
basis. Progress billings not yet paid by the
customer were included under “Trade and
other receivables”. Amounts received before the
related work is performed were included under
“Trade and other payables”. These balances have
been reclassified on 1 April 2018 as shown in
note 16 (see note 2(c)(ii)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only
the passage of time is required before payment
of that consideration is due. If revenue has been
recognised before the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset (see note 2(i)).

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit
losses (see note 2(g)(i)).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised
at fair value. Except for financial guarantee
liabilities measured in accordance with note 2(g)
(i), trade and other payables are subsequently
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

)

(m)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and in hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the
Group's cash management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement.

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(n)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit
or loss except to the extent that they relate
to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities and all deferred tax assets, to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable
profits that may support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, provided those differences relate
to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of
the deductible temporary difference or in periods
into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax
asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising
from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate
to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(n)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor
taxable profit (provided they are not part of a
business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences,
the Group controls the timing of the reversal
and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that
they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(continued)
(n) Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,
and movements therein, are presented separately
from each other and are not offset. Current tax
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities,
if the Group or the Company has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Group or the Company
intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on
either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which,
in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EXRZEHXR(E)

(continued)
(o) Provisions and contingent liabilities (o)

(i) Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Group
has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditures expected
to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required,
or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote.

(ii) Onerous contracts

An onerous contract exists when the
Group has a contract under which
the unavoidable costs of meeting the
obligations under the contract exceed the
economic benefits expected to be received
from the contract. Provisions for onerous
contracts are measured at the present
value of the lower of the expected cost of
terminating the contract and the net cost
of continuing with the contract.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 SETECR ()

(continued)

Group’s assets in the ordinary course of the
Group's business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a
product or service is transferred to the customer,
or the lessee has the right to use the asset, at the
amount of promised consideration to which the
Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those
amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Construction contract revenue

A contract with a customer is classified by
the Group as a construction contract when
the contract relates to work on real estate
assets under the control of the customer
and therefore the Group’s construction
activities create or enhance an asset under
the customer’s control.

When the outcome of a construction
contract can be reasonably measured,
revenue from the contract is recognised
progressively over time using the output
method based on direct measurements of
value of services delivered or surveys of
work performed.

The likelihood of the Group in suffering
contractual penalties for late completion
are taken into account in making these
estimates, such that revenue is only
recognised to the extent that it is highly
probable that a significant reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(p)

(a)

Revenue and other income

(continued)

(i) Construction contract revenue
(continued)
When the outcome of the contract cannot
be reasonably measured, revenue is
recognised only to the extent of contract
costs incurred that are expected to be
recovered.

If at any time the costs to complete the
contract are estimated to exceed the
remaining amount of the consideration
under the contract, then a provision is
recognised in accordance with the policy
set out in note 2(o)(ii).

Revenue for construction contracts was
recognised on a similar basis in the
comparative period under HKAS 11.

(ii) Rental income from operating leases
Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in
equal instalments over the periods covered
by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from
the use of the leased asset.

(iii) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.
Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(r) Related parties

(M

A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group if
that person:

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the
Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the
Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions applies:

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

The entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(r)

(s)

Related parties (continued)

(2)  An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:
(continued)

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(n(1).

(vii) A person identified in (r)(1)(i) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a
group of which it is a part, provides
key management personnel services
to the Group or to the Group’s
parent.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group's
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing
the performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

2

BX

(r)

(s)

2EHBCR (&)

BB (&)

2 WM—REBHTE TIIME
IRt - R E B A
SEBERY : (&)

vi)y &

=
=
=
>
H

(vii)

(vii) EENERIER
SEEAKE R
AIE P —F D A
NN ]
B RAEREE
ZEIENERT ©

RAANTOREMRKEIEE

HZERETISNBIETE

AEREZRALTREZEA
FENREKE °
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REBRAEERTAEES
X RME RHEERR - &
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3

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATES

(a) Critical accounting judgements in
applying the Group’s accounting
policies
In the process of applying the Group's

accounting policies, management has made the
following accounting judgements:

0]

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives, after taking
into account the estimated residual value.
The Group reviews the estimated useful
lives of the property, plant and equipment
regularly in order to determine the amount
of depreciation expense to be recorded
during any reporting period. The useful
lives are based on the Group’s historical
experience with similar assets taking into
account anticipated technological changes.
The depreciation expense for future
periods is adjusted if there are significant
changes from previous estimates.

3

B R
() ERFKEZEHEERZ
EPN-Eig]

PR AR L2 R TREERS -
BB R AT @A IR

(i)

M BERRBITE

ME - BB RREREE
RAEFHRISREER @ 1%
BHARERE G AIE A
FRAENE - *&
EEHENDE  BE
Ko 5% A it & AT 68 R 4R
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B o Al A FR IR IE
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3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATES
(a) Critical accounting judgements in

applying the Group’s accounting
policies (continued)

(i)

Allowance for expected credit losses
The Group uses a provision of matrix
to calculate ECLs for trade receivables,
retentions receivable and contract assets.
The provision rates are based on days past
due for groupings of various debtors that
have similar loss patterns. The provision
matrix is based on management’s estimate
of the lifetime expected credit losses to be
incurred, which is estimated by taking into
account the credit loss experience, ageing
of overdue trade receivables, customers’
repayment history and customers’ financial
position and an assessment of both the
current and forecast general economic
conditions, all of which involve a significant
degree of management judgement.

The provision of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and of forecast
general economic conditions. The
information about the ECLs and the
Group’s trade receivables, retentions
receivable and contract assets are disclosed
in note 20(a). If the financial condition of
the customers or the forecast economic
conditions were to deteriorate, actual loss
allowance would be higher than estimated.

2t HE R A ET

FERAEE e RERZ
EXREFHE (8

(ii)

BAHEEBRRE
ANER B8 A AR [ B AT
HRKE SRR - B
REERENEENTE
HEEER - BEXE
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3

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(b)

Sources of estimation uncertainty

Construction contracts

As explained in policy note 2(p)(i), revenue
from construction contracts are recognised
over time. Such revenue and profit recognition
on uncompleted projects is dependent on
estimating the total outcome of the contract,
as well as the work done to date. The Group
reviews and revises the estimates of contract
revenue, contract costs and variation orders,
prepared for each construction contract as the
contract progresses. Budgeted construction
costs are prepared by management on the basis
of quotations from time to time provided by
the major subcontractors, suppliers or vendors
involved and the experience of management.
In order to keep the budget accurate and
up-to-date, management conducts periodic
reviews of the budgeted construction costs by
comparing the budgeted amounts to the actual
costs incurred.

Significant judgement is required in estimating
the contract revenue, contract costs and variation
work which may have an impact on revenue
and profit recognised to date. In addition, actual
outcomes in terms of total revenue or costs may
be higher or lower than estimated at the end
of the reporting period, which would affect the
revenue and profit recognised in future periods
as an adjustment to the amounts recorded to
date.

3

DA R A (&)
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4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

(a)

(b)

Revenue

Revenue represents revenue from construction
contracts earned during the year.

At 31 March 2019, the aggregate amount
of revenue expected to be recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income in the future from
the Group’s existing construction contracts
amounted to $608,621,000, which will be
recognised when the work is performed and
which is expected to occur over the next 1 year
to 2 years.

The Group has applied practical expedient in
paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 to exempt the
disclosure of revenue expected to be recognised
in the future arising from contracts with
customers in existence at the reporting date with
performance obligation is part of a contract that
has an original expected duration of one year or
less.

Segment information

The chief operating decision-maker regards the
Group’s business as a single operating segment
and reviews financial statements accordingly.
Also, the Group only engages its business in
Hong Kong. Therefore, no segment information
is presented.

(b)

Ko BRE#

Lg
W R HE N AT EREGZ SR 5 49
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REBRBREES LA TTEH
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4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT 4 WamkoEBER (F)

INFORMATION (continued)

() Information about major customers (0 EBEEXEEFZEH
Revenue from customers contributing over 10% RN 5 B 4R W 2 T 2R 10% A
of the total revenue of the Group is as follows: FEBMEPENT

2019 2018
—E-hE —E—N\F
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Customer A ZEA 30,922 57,481
Customer B = 5B = 37,458
Customer C BHC - 30,222
Customer D ZFED - 74,950
Customer E = FE 128,307 -
Customer F =FF 46,162 =
Customer G =2PFG 33,053 -
5 OTHER REVENUE 5 Hftts

2019 2018
—E-hF —EZT—)N\F
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Bank interest income AT E WA 708 796

Interest income from FElmERERIE 2
finance lease receivables AW A 43 14

Sales of scrap materials $H & pE R 904 1,963

Rental income from machinery ez KA 6,000 6,000

(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEWE  MEM&E

plant and equipment 2 (E18) e (1,532) 225

Others HAib 60 1,853

6,183 10,851
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6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 6 KBREINER
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BREADEF B, GEA) TS
(crediting): I8
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\EF
$'000 $'000
Fx Tt
(a) Finance costs (a) ®ERK
Interest on bank loan IRITERF B
(note 14(c)) (Bt EE14(c)) - 82
Finance charges on obligations BEMERIEY
under finance leases REEA
(note 14(c)) (FFEE14()) 43 14
Interest on bank overdrafts IRITBEZFIE 47 =
20 96
(b) Staff costs (including (b) EBIMK
directors’ remuneration) (BEEEH™H)
Contributions to defined FE R
contribution retirement plans RIRET B 729 708
Salaries, wages and e IEBER
other benefits H i 12 7 24,298 25,323
25,027 26,031
Less: Amount included in W ETAE
construction contracts BEEAHY
in progress ] - (708)
25,027 25,323
(c) Other items (¢ HfER
Depreciation e 5,101 6,119
Operating lease charges: CEHEER
minimum lease payments in HEHAE
respect of leasing of office KM E R 1,192 1,128
Auditors’ remuneration 1% EX A BN &
— audit services - ZE R 1,165 1,050
— other services — H bR 500 400
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7 INCOME TAX 7  F3®
(@) Income tax in the consolidated statement (a) #HEBEBERHMEEKRERA
of profit or loss and other comprehensive W5 -
income represents:
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-)N\F
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Current tax N R TR
Provision for Hong Kong AEEBRBETEME
Profits Tax for the year 3,177 5,302
Over-provision in respect of BT EBREEE
prior years (34) 4)
3,143 5,298
Deferred tax IR IE
Origination and reversal of B A R EE A R
temporary difference (1,292) (750)
1,851 4,548
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7

INCOME TAX (continued)

Income tax in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income represents: (continued)

(a)

Notes:

0]

(ii)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), the Group
is not subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands
and the BVI.

In March 2018, the Hong Kong Government introduced
a two-tiered profits tax rate regime by enacting the
Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 3) Ordinance 2018
(the “Ordinance”). Under the two-tiered profits tax
rate regime, the first HK$2 million of assessable profits
of qualifying corporations is taxed at 8.25% and the
remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%. The
Ordinance is effective from the year of assessment
2018-2019.

Accordingly, the provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax
for the year ended 31 March 2019 is calculated in
accordance with the two-tiered profits tax rate regime

(2018: a single tax rate of 16.5% was applied).

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2019 has
also taking into account a reduction of 75% of the tax
payable for the year of assessment 2018-19 subject
to a maximum reduction of $20,000 granted by the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (the “Government”) for each business (2018:
a reduction of 75% of the tax payable for the year of
assessment 2017-18 subject to a maximum reduction of
$30,000).

7

FriS®i (#8)
FEMBRAEEERERR
KRR 8RS ()

(a)

(ii)

REMASESRAEBELES
((EBEZESE]) NHRBIER
Bl - AEBBELNFEES
REBE LR BOERMSH

RZZT—N\FE=A ' BBKAF
BB FIET2018F B (15 3T)
(835%) &6 (T&BI1) - 31&
— MR FERESE - R
MBFFEHEEFET 64
RN AL FIE 52,000,000
7 TT T 1R8.25% A AN B K - T
BT 2 FE B A B AR 16.5%
BABIK - FRHIER=FT—N
BT NFRBFERER

At #E=2=F—h"LF=A
=+ BLEEZEBANEH
B8 T 1R AR bl 15 B R 51
(ZE—N\F:ERE—B=X
16.5%) 5t & °

—E-NAFEEBNEREE
IR E &t R BB R BIT B B
BB MEEBR =
—NEZT-NERREE
B FE A B BRI S275% (%R
%20,0007¢) &t E (ZF—N\
FRZE—LE-_T-NF
RN FEENENEERE75%
(%% #%30,0007T)) °
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7 INCOME TAX (continued) 7 PGB

(b) Reconciliation between income tax expense (b)
and accounting profit before taxation at

BRERBRFTENRAEHRMAX

SRR AT & 5 F 49 B AR 40

applicable tax rate: L
2019 2018
—E-hF —T-N\F
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Profit before taxation B 35t A A A 12,420 27,566
Notional tax on profit before R B AR A B 2 & IR
taxation (Note) (MF5E) 1,884 4,548
Tax effect of non-deductible AN AT 058 B 2 MO B A
expenses % 41 80
Tax effect of non-taxable income — “RAJ FIHL U A &9
T 5 & - (1)
Tax effect of deductible temporary 7 #E32 o] F0 51 & = 58
differences not recognised BT % R 2 - (15)
Statutory tax concession EERBER (40) (60)
Over-provision in prior years BEFEBBEEE (34) 4
Actual income tax expense ERATSHAY 1,851 4,548

Note:  For the year ended 31 March 2019, the notional tax is
calculated in accordance with the two-tiered profits tax
rate regime under which tax on the first HK$2 million of
profits is calculated at 8.25% and tax on the remaining
profits is calculated at 16.5%. For the year ended 31
March 2018, a single tax rate of 16.5% was applied.

W

HE-_T-—NEF=A=+—
AIEFEZREBHEDRE
MEBMAGTE EhE
2,000,000/ 7T #9 4 1 #28.25%
ZREE M T 8 F
AlR16.5% 2 TR H - HE
—E-N\FE=A=+—H1
FE - AEEERE-—HX
16.5% ©
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7 INCOME TAX (continued) 7  PFE%(8)
(¢) Income tax in the consolidated statement of (00 HZEFBERRRFFEHIE:

financial position represents:

31 March 1 April 31 March
2019 2018 2018
—E-hF ZT—N\F
= ZT—N\#F =A
=+-8 mWA-A =+-8
(Note)
(P EE)
$'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Tt Fr
(i) Current taxation R HR 8
Provision for Hong Kong  4E A& K155
Profits Tax for the year B f& 3,177 5,302 5,302
Provisional Profits B SIS
Tax paid (5.264)  (21,951)  (21,951)

(2,087) (16,649) (16,649)

Balance of Hong Kong A R:B#EFEA]
Profits Tax recoverable  Ug[E] Z 4 K 1551

relating to prior years it (1,487) (1,487) -

Tax recoverable AJUg [B] 75 18 (3,574) (18,136) (16,649)
Note: Upon the initial application of HKFRS 15, the Group ek R ERAE BT RS ER
has recognised current tax assets arising from change F1551% - AEBEBEEREE
in timing of contract costs recognition for construction HEHZ AR AERR R
contracts (see note 2 (c)(ii)). FmELZHREEE (R

FF&E2 (o) °
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7 INCOME TAX (continued) 7 FRS® (&)
() Income tax in the consolidated statement of () HEMBRRARFBFERE:
financial position represents: (continued) (&)

(ii) Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities in (i) HMBERRRANELES

the statement of financial position B(EE) B8EE:
represents:
The components of deferred tax (assets)/ RIS IR R R R
liabilities recognised in the statement of RIERIE (BE) /B&
financial position and the movements HpkEB D RERNEB N
during the year are as follows: K

Depreciation

allowances
in excess
of related
depreciation
B EREE
ZITERBE
$'000
T
Deferred tax arising from: A RE BT 1 A -
At 1 April 2017 RZE—+FWHA—H 2,000
Credited to profit or loss FrABEER (750)
At 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 R-ZE—NE=A=+—HBK
—ZE-\FMA—H 1,250
Credited to profit or loss T AE R (1,292)
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NAF=A=+—H (42)
(d) There were no material unrecognised deferred d) R=ZZT—NFR=ZZF-NEF=
tax assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2019 and A=+—8 ' WESKAKRER

2018, RIERITEEERBE °
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8 DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 8 EZEHM
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section RIRE B R ARG FE38MIE LA
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and R(EREZBNER ZHKE) RO
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information F2HFEECESHIAT ¢

about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Year ended 31 March 2019
BE-E-hE-R=t-ALEE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors'  and benefits scheme
fees in kind Bonuses  contributions Total
#é 20
EEHe RENAZ AL B EES @
$000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000
i i i r r
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Lau Pak Man Bk - 1452 - 18 1,470
Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong BRERE - 1,440 - 18 1,458
Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit B2Lat - 1,440 - 18 1,458
Independent non-executive BUFHfES
directors
Mr. Leung Chi Kin PERLE 150 - - - 150
Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis WEELE 150 - - - 150
Mr. Yau Chi Man Norman EFHRE
(also known as lao Chi Meng) 150 - - - 150

Total @5t 450 4,332 - 54 4,836
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8 DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 8 EFHM (E)
(continued)

Year ended 31 March 2018
BE_ZT-/\5ZA=t-HLEE

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors'  and benefits scheme
fees in kind Bonuses  contributions Total
56 28R
Yok ENH= L RIRGEIER @it
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
i i Fr Tr Tr
Executive directors HOTES
Mr. Lau Pak Man AMaE - 1,520 120 18 1,658
Mr. Cheng Wing Cheong HREKE - 1,520 120 18 1,658
Ms. Kwan Kit Sum Kit BaLit = 1,401 110 18 1,529
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTES
directors
Mr. Leung Chi Kin PRER S 150 - - - 150
Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis ML E 150 - - - 150
Mr. Yau Chi Man Norman EF8EE
(also known as lao Chi Meng) 150 - - - 150
Total &t 450 4,441 350 54 5,295
Notes: PR EE -
(i) No director waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during (i) MESEENHE_ZT-NFR_ZT—N
the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018. FZA=+—BLEFEREXREN
LA o
(ii) The Company did not have any share option scheme for the (i) REZE-Z-hEER-_ZT—-\F=A
purchase of ordinary shares in the Company during the years =+—HIEFE AR A& 0

ended 31 March 2019 and 2018. BARR A B ERIERT & -
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9 EMOLUMENTS OF FIVE HIGHEST 9 FIuEBSFMALESHE
PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR [ 2 %
MANAGEMENT
(a) Emoluments of five highest paid () ENUHESHMA L ZHH

individuals
The five highest paid individuals of the Group RERAEE RN ZSHHA
during the year include three (2018: Three) o6 4 EL B A B S8R B BR
director whose emoluments are disclosed in note M=REE(ZZ—NF: =
8. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of %) c BEHESBA LT ZH B4R
the remaining individuals are as follows: OO
2019 2018
—g-hE —T-)\F
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Salaries, allowances and Fre  EURREDHR
benefits in kind 1,480 2,110
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAL - =
Retirement scheme contributions 3R {RKET £ 5% 36 36
1,516 2,146
The emoluments of the above individuals are it ATFBNE T 5 &

within the following bands:

2019 2018

—g-hE —Z2)N\F

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

A A

Nil to $1,000,000 £ %1,000,0007T 2 1

$1,000,001 to $2,000,000 1,000,001t &
2,000,0007T - 1
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9 EMOLUMENTS OF FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

(a)

Emoluments of senior management

Other than the emoluments of the directors and
five highest paid individuals disclosed in notes
8 and 9(a), the emoluments of the remaining
senior management fell within the following
band:

9 HuURSHFMALIRSRE
B2 FHM (&)
b) EREZENHS

PR S8 RO B E =
RAUZEHFMA LT ZHME
v R RARERENIEE
E

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\EF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A AL
Nil to $1,000,000 £ %£1,000,0007T 2 1
10 EARNINGS PER SHARE 10 BREF
Basic earnings per share (a) BREXZA
The calculation of basic earnings per share BRERBRIZAR QB =
is based on the profit attributable to equity [i% BR & 15 )& #1)10,569,0007T
shareholders of the Company of $10,569,000 (== — )\ :23,018,0007T)
(2018: $23,018,000) and the weighted N B 2T R A9 A0 35 £
average of 830,000,000 shares in issue (2018: 830,000,0000% (=ZZF—/\4F
830,000,000 shares). 830,000,000/%) 5t & °
Diluted earnings per share (b) SREHZEAR

(b)

There were no diluted potential shares in
existence during the years ended 31 March 2019
and 2018.

REEZZ—NFE=F—/)N\
E=ZA=+—HIFE  #E
BB -
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11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11 ¥ - BEKRXE
Plant and Leasehold ~ Furniture Motor Office
machinery improvements  and fixtures vehicles  equipment Total
BEREE HRENERE GARRE RE  BOERR a3t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
S S Tr T T T

Cost: A
At 1 April 2017 RZE-tEmA-A 32,265 995 657 1,194 1,730 36,841
Additions hE = = 36 500 166 702
Disposals f5 (4,099) - - (286) - (4,385)
At31 March 2018 RZE-\F=A=1-H 28,166 995 693 1,408 1,8% 33,158
At 1 April 2018 A\ZE-/\FRA-A 28,166 995 693 1,408 1,89 33,158
Additions AE - - - - 50 50
Disposals e (27,104) - - (120) -
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NF=A=T-H 1,062 995 693 1,288 1,946 5,984
Accumulated depreciation: ~ EiifE :
At 1 April 2017 RIE-t§NA-H 11,951 784 599 1,194 1,587 16,115
Written back on disposal RUERED (1,776) = = (286) = (2,062)
Charge for the year ERRx 5,784 70 29 150 8 6,119
At31 March 2018 RZE-\E=A=1-H 1599 84 68 108 163 20172
At 1 April 2018 RZE-\EMA-A 15,959 854 628 1,058 1,673 2,172
Written back on disposal RHEREE (19,656) = = (36) = (19,692)
Charge for the year ERRx 4759 70 28 150 9% 5,101
At 31 March 2019 RZB-NEZR=+-B 00 o 656 1mo 1767 5581
Net book value: BERE:
At 31 March 2019 R-E-NE=A=1-H - N 37 116 179 403
At 31 March 2018 RZE-\F=A=+-R 12,207 14 65 350 3 12,986
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11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11 W% - BERRE (&)
(continued)

(a) Assets leased out under operating (a) RELEHEHEMNEE
leases
The Group leases out certain machinery under AEERFL LS HEET
operating leases. The lease runs for a period of M - MAFHA—F - WA
one year and does not include contingent rentals. BRERNER o
Total future minimum lease payments under BB A EUB S 2 H & fEdk
non-cancellable operating leases are receivable as B 7R 2R & (K AE & T BB BB 40
follows: T ¢
2019 2018
—E-hE —FTN\F
$'000 $'000
T T
Within 1 year —FR - 500
12 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 12 RMBABZRE
The following list contains the particulars of subsidiaries TEREEAEEMB AT ZFE
of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless BRIESEHA - RO ER AL
otherwise stated. AL o

Proportion of ownership interest

itk S0
Place of Particulars of Group's
incorporation issued and effective  Held by the Held by a
Name of company and business  paid-up capital interest Company subsidiary Principal activity
ARy BEARE L]
AFER REXRE  ERAHE ASEERER fif KEARME IEER
In Construction (BVI) Limited BVI 1 share of US$1 100% 100% - Investment holding
AERAEE 1RETLRA RERK
In Construction Limited Hong Kong 9,300,000 shares 100% - 100%  Construction and engineering
RERERRAT &% 9,300,000 &M% BETR
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13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 13 ESKHMERFIE
31 March 1 April 31 March
2019 2018 2018
—E-NEF —ZT-N\F
=B =ZZ—)N\#F =A
Er= mA—H ==
$'000 $'000 $'000
Tr Tt T
Trade debtors FEWE 5 BR K 50,681 289 289
Deposits, prepayments and e EAREEA
other receivables (note (i)) e R IE (B EEx)) 36,635 49,834 49,834
Retentions receivable EURE &
(Notes (i) and (iii)) (B = Gi) Bz Giii) ) 56,294 58,258 66,061
Amounts due from JE W A% R SRR
shareholders (Note (iv)) (M EEGv) 7 - =
143,617 108,381 116,184
Notes: MieE

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

As at 31 March 2019, all balances are expected to be recovered
or recognised as expense within one year (2018: except for
the amount of $17,372,000 was expected to be recovered
or recognised as expense after one year, all of the remaining
balances were expected to be recovered or recognised as

expense within one year).

As at 31 March 2019, all the retentions receivable are expected
to be recovered within one year (2018: except for an amount of
$8,369,000 was expected to be recovered after one year, all of
the remaining balances were expected to be recovered within

one year).

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, some of the retentions
receivable, for which the Group’s entitlement to the
consideration was conditioned on achieving certain milestones
or satisfying completion of the retention period, were reclassified
from “Trade and other receivables” to “Contract assets” (see
note 2(c)ii)).

The amounts due from shareholders at 31 March 2019 are

unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

(0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

RZE-hF=ZA=+—B FEH
BIERAN —FAKE SRR AR (=
T—/\F : lr&£%17,372,0007TFE AR

—FREERER BRI A
BIEMN - FAREHERRAZ)

R-T—h&=A=+—8 FiEE
IR L FEHR—FRkE (ZF—N\
4 : R4 %88,369,0007T B AN — 1%
WEI5h - BT SRRETEER —F AUkE]) o

PRER A 78 B 75 4R o5 A2 B 351 5 B -
AEBZERENEFNAFTELET
BEBKRFHEMTKRET AER
MEl D AR S [ B 5 R E MR
FRIEHOBEIGHNEE] (RN
2(oii))

RZTE-NF=A=+—HBz2EHER
RRBRAFEM - 28 REEEER
# o
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13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 13 EFRHEHMEKKIE ()
(continued)
(a) Ageing analysis (a) BRERDHT

Included in trade and other receivables are trade
debtors, based on the invoice date (net of loss
allowance) with the following ageing analysis at
the end of the reporting period:

B 5 kA REKHIAT 0 E
WE SRR - HRHEHRE
PR H )RR BB REORE
DT -

2019 2018

—E-hF —E—)\F

$'000 $'000

Fx Tt

Within 1 month —@AR 35,595 -
Over 3 months =@ E 15,086 289
50,681 289

Trade debtors are normally due within 14-30
days from the date of billing. Further details
on the Group’s credit policy are set out in note
20(a).

EUWE SERZGEE BRAEA
B14E30BNEIH - B K
EEEEBCRZE—FFEH
R EE20(@) °

14 CASH AND BANK BALANCES 14 BRERIBITHEER

(a) Cash and bank balances comprise: (a) BRERMVBITHERERE:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-)N\F
$'000 $'000
Fx Tt
Cash at bank and in hand WRITRFERE 8,836 20,542
Deposits with banks RITER 36,775 47,493
Cash and bank balances in the e MBI ERPIRE
consolidated statement of MRTTHE R
financial position 45,611 68,035
Less: Restricted bank W R BIRIT AR
balances (note) (FFsE) (36,775) (47,493)
Cash and cash equivalents in FEARSRBRTRS
the consolidated cash flow KR EEY
statement 8,836 20,542
Note: Restricted bank balances are deposits placed in banks to MiaE : RRHRITEBIETRIRITIA

ERELENRE (RME22)
FIRTTRE 2173

secure the issuance of performance bonds (see note 22)

and banking facilities.
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2018. Under the transition method chosen, comparative

information is not restated. See note 2(c).

14 CASH AND BANK BALANCES 14 RERIBITER(E)
(continued)
(b) Reconciliation of profit before (b) BRBADEFIELE (A,
taxation to cash (used in)/generated FrEEE ¥R :
from operations:
2019 2018
—E-hF —E—-N\%F
(Note)
(FF3E)
Note $'000 $'000
BT Fx T
Operating activities RESER
Profit before taxation & B4 BT g A 12,420 27,566
Adjustments for: BRI IBFEE
Bank interest income RITH B A 5 (708) (796)
Interest income from FEU R A T EFIE
finance lease receivables A B A 5 (43) (14)
Loss/(gain) on disposal HEWE - HE
at property, plant and NE#E 2B
equipment B/ (W) 5 1,532 (225)
Finance costs BE A A 6(a) 90 96
Depreciation e 6(c) 5,101 6,119
Changes in working capital: ZiEE& &8 :
(Increase)/decrease in trade 25 & E A fEUER
and other receivables B (), R
& (32,636) 125,943
Increase in gross amounts BREEE L)
due from customers for TIEFIELLZE
contract work 9N - (55,279)
Increase in contract assets EHEEE N (27,902) -
Decrease in inventories FERL 2,335 -
Increase in trade and other & 5 K H fth & {~f
payables FIBIE N 7,073 19,989
Decrease in gross amounts  ENEF A4
due to customers for TREFIELEE
contract work RS - (13,735)
Decrease in contract BHEaBRD
liabilities (5,116) —
Cash (used in)/generated &% (FTH), i
from operations R& (37,854) 109,664
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 at 1 April s : AEER=Z—/\FWLA—AH

ERN R
58155% - RIFPTRIBHBIES
E o WREDLLRER o BHK
200 °
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14 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

(continued)
Reconciliation of liabilities arising
from financing activities

(0

The table below details changes in the Group's

liabilities from financing activities, including both
cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising
from financing activities are liabilities for which
cash flows were, or future cash flows will be,

14 RERKIBIT

(9]

METBELERENHER

PRAFARARNEEREBE
mBRBEES

FRe

THEER (E

BEAEK
c BREVRENELH
BEARESREIAIRER
EffEMEERE  WKES

classified in the Group's consolidated cash flow HARERSNRETARE
statement as cash flows from financing activities. EiRaHRemER o
Obligations
Bank loan - under finance
secured _ leases Total
RITEM— MERE R
BEA B st
(Notq 18(b))
(P EE18(0))
$'000 $'000 $'000
FT T T
At 1 April 2017 R-B—tEmMA—A 5,116 1,201 6,317
Changes from MERSRE
financing cash flows: 2
Repayment of loan EEEN (5,116) - (5,116)
Repayment of capital EEREHE
elements of finance HeE AR H
leases rentals - (1,201) (1,201)
Interest paid BERFE (82) (14) (96)
Total changes from BmERSTE
financing cash flows c ot (5,198) (1,215) (6,413)
Other change: Hit %5 :
Interest expenses F S (FiFE6(a))
(note 6@) 82 4 %
At 31 March 2018 R=2-N\F=H
and 1 April 2018 = et =53
~F-N\f@mA-R - -
Change from MERSRERS
financing cash flows:
Total change from RERERELBER
financing cash flows = = -
Other changes: Hitn 25 :
Finance charges on MEMRERECREER
obligations under finance  (Ff3%6(a))
leases (note 6(a)) = 43 43
Finance leases obtained FARGZREHERE
during the year - 20,628 20,628
Total other change Hw&smesE 000000 = 20,671 20,671
At 31 March 2019 R=-Z-—1%F
SH=— - 20,671 20,671
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15 GROSS AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO 15 EW EBNIEFEHNIRENR
CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT WORK T4 RE
2019 2018
—g-hE —TN&
$'000 $'000
S T
Gross amounts due from customers for BEWREFAHNIR
contract work RIEHEE
Contract costs incurred plus recognised BEEESAKAMEER
profits less recognised losses i AR E R e 1R - 979,333
Less: Progress billings L B R GE R IE
received and receivable = (873,441)
- 105,892
Gross amounts due to customers for EREFEHNIR
contract work RIBHEE
Progress billings received and receivable B U R e it fE R 0E = 390,861
Less: Contract costs incurred plus B EEESHKAMNE
recognised profits less TR 4 AR B R
recognised losses &8 - (383,507)
- 7,354

As at 31 March 2018, all gross amounts due from/
to customers for contract work were expected to be
recovered/settled within one year.

Note: Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, gross amounts due from/to
customers for contract work were included in contract assets
and contract liabilities respectively and disclosed in note 16 (see
note 2(c)(ii)).

R-ZE—-—NF=RA=+—H" A
U TN B P AR TR IR
FHATR—FRKE S -

Mizk : RIERAB B BHRELRE1551% -
U EREFANTIRIIBAER
PRGFAGHNEERGHNEBEN - I
MY 165 7 (R KT EE2(0)i) °
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16 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 16 BHNEEREGNERE
LIABILITIES
(a) Contract assets (a) EHEE
31 March 1 April 31 March
2019 2018 2018
—E-NF —T—)\F
=B ZZ—)\F =A
=t-8 mA-BA =+-~
(Note (i)) (Note (i)
(PR EEG)) (HTEEG))
Notes $'000 $'000 $'000
b= SEom T Ft
Contract assets EHNEE
Arising from BITEREEA
performance under FREE &
construction contracts (i), (iii) 128,742 100,840 -
Notes: 5T
(i) The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 using the (i) REEENFEAEBIER

(ii)

(iii)

cumulative effect method and adjusted the opening
balances as at 1 April 2018.

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, some of the retentions
receivable, for which the Group’s entitlement to the
consideration was conditional on achieving certain
milestones or satisfactory completion of the retention
period, were reclassified from “Retentions receivable”
under “Trade and other receivables” to “Contract
assets” (see note 2(c)ii)).

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, amounts previously
included as “Gross amounts due from customers for
contract work” (note 15) were reclassified to “Contract

assets” (see note 2(c)(ii)).

(i)

(iii)

EERIFE ISR ER R EA
YHRER-_FT—-N\FEOA—R
ZENEERR

R BB R & 4RI F15
Stk - AREZHKENET
BIFERE TERB R
ElRTERE T IERRE D &
WRE S M [E 5 R H &R
FREIZ [RERES]IEEHD
BRIAKNEE] (R
(ii))

MR E B R EERIF15
& ERETATEKRERS
HITRFRFELRE] (HFE15) 2
REEENDBRIGHEE]
(RHEEE2(0)) ©
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16 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (continued)

(a)

Contract assets (continued)

The Group’s construction contracts normally
include payment schedules which require
stage payments over the construction period
once milestones are reached. These payment
schedules prevent the build-up of significant
contract assets. The Group also typically agrees
to a one year retention period for 5% to 10%
of the contract value. This amount is included
in contract assets until the end of the retention
period as the Group's entitlement to this final
payment is conditional on the Group work
satisfactorily passing inspection.

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group's
rights to consideration for work completed but
not yet billed at the year end date. The increase
in contract assets in 2019 was the result of the
increase in the provision of construction services
at the end of the year. The contract assets are
transferred to trade receivables when the rights
become unconditional.

The amount of contract assets that is expected
to be recovered after more than one year is
$14,643,000, all of which related to retentions.

The amount of revenue recognised during the
year from performance obligations satisfied
(or partially satisfied) in previous periods is
$28,600,000, mainly due to the changes in
estimate of the transaction price of certain
construction contracts.

16

AN
=

(a)

VEERSHER (E)

EHEE (#)
REBEMREESOBEHF
X - AERBERNE
BE T B AZRERE 5 B B S 3k
H - ZENFEERBIERE
BEAREBHEE - NEBAEIT
RE—FMREFH  RBLH
BHBEMNS%E10% - BN
REBZHZERENREE
FEFAEENIRES ARE
R IBIRER TR AIEE - Bt
SEIASGHNEE  EERT
HAEERAILE

BHEEXERNAEEZESR
REZASTRERELRE
TREMRENERN - —F—Ah
FHENEERINERNEBEF
AR R ZERBIEN - &
H)E BN BARE R PR R R R A
R ABWE SRR

EHR —FRKRENEHNEE
©¥7314,643,0007T - 20
REZHEA -

R E— BRI B R (5
E IR B BRI
7 & ¥8./328,600,0007T © £ 2
BaETRESOEHRHE
BB -
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(i) The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 using the

cumulative effect method and adjusted the opening
balance at 1 April 2018.

(ii) Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, amounts previously

included as “Gross amounts due to customers for

contract work” (note 15) were reclassified to “Contract

liabilities” (see note 2(c)(ii)).

(i)

(i)

16 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 16 EHNEERGHNEE(E)
LIABILITIES (continued)
(b) Contract liabilities (b) &HAE
31 March 1 April 31 March
2019 2018 2018
—E-NF —T—)\F
=B ZZ—)\F =A
Er=E mA—H ==18
(Note (i)) (Note (i)
(B EEG)) (B EG))
Notes $'000 $'000 $'000
b= SEom T Tz
Contract liabilities EHNERE
Construction contracts EEES4)
— Billings in advance — A RIS R
of performance (ii) 2,238 7,354 -
Notes: 5T

REEERRFZELERE
REBI R E LR 155% -
YHRER_FT—-N\FEOA—A
BV F AR o

KRB B R E 4RI F15
Sk BAERATENERA
HTREFAELE] (MFE15) 2
REEFSPBRIGHNAR]
(R B EE2(0)i) ) °
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16 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (continued)
(b) Contract liabilities (continued)

The contract liabilities primarily relate to the
advanced consideration received from customers,
for which revenue is recognised based on the
progress of the provision of related services.

(b)

Significant changes in contract liabilities are
explained as follows:

16 SHEERGNAE (E)

BHEE(E)
AHEEIEEEKELPHK
EBRHEH  GRRETIRE
RHBEREEZER -

EHBENEREEHM M
T~

$'000
Tz
Balance at 1 April 2018 RZZE—N\FWMA—B & 7,354
Revenue recognised that was included in st AFAIA K BELEH 2
the contract liabilities balance at the B R R e
beginning of the year (5,116)
Balance at 31 March 2019 R-ZE—NF=A=+—H
2 HEER 2,238
17 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 17 ESRHEHMEMNIE
2019 2018
—E-NF —ET-N\F
$'000 $'000
Fx T
Trade creditors BB SRR 70,578 65,464
Other payables and accruals Hth FE T RIE K
EETER 5,775 3,732
Amounts due to shareholders (note) JES IR ZIE (M 5F) - 84
76,353 69,280

Note: The amounts due to shareholders at 31 March 2018 were

unsecured, interest-free and had no fixed terms of repayment.

B

RZZB-\F=A=+—H ' ERKR
FEREER - 28 REEEERY -
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17 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 17 BZREMEMATRIE(E)

18

(continued)

Included in trade and other payables are trade
creditors, based on invoice date, with the following

STAE S R E RN AN SEN
BHER  RBERRZERAY

ageing analysis at the end of the reporting period: ZERESTAOT
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Within 1 month —@AR 29,041 21,314
1 to 2 months —ZEMfE A 14,705 15,973
2 to 3 months WZE =18 A 14,271 16,118
Over 3 months = @A E 12,561 12,059
70,578 65,464
FINANCE LEASES 18 MEHE
(a) Finance lease receivables () EURMEHEENIE
At 31 March 2019, the Group has finance lease RZE—NF=A=+—8

receivables as follows:

AEERAN T EERERE

A
2019

—E-NE
Present Total
value of the minimum
minimum lease
lease payments payments
RIEHEE RIEHEE
NRRE EA L
$000 $'000
T T
Within 1 year —FR 3,814 4,601
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRERER 3,941 4,601
After 2 years but within 5 years MEREBERER 12,916 13,807

e 16857 . 18,408

20,671 23,009
Less: total unearned finance income W REREXEE WA B ER (2,338)

Present value of lease receivables

EUHEREZRE

20,671
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18 FINANCE LEASES (continued) 18 ®MEMRE (&)
(b) Obligations under finance leases (b) MEHERE
At 31 March 2019, the Group had obligations RZZ-—NE=A=+—8"
under finance leases repayable as follows: REBEERN T EREEREM
ERIE 2 A
2019
“EB-hE
Present Total
value of the minimum
minimum lease
lease payments payments
REHEE BEAE
NRBRE ESEEE ]
$'000 $000
T T
Within 1 year -“%x 3814 4,601
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREREN 3,941 4,601
After 2 years but within 5 years MERERFR 12,916 13,807
I 16857 .. 18,408
20,671 23,009
Less: total future interest expenses B BRRMERTEE (2,338)
Present value of lease obligations MEREZHRE 20,671

During the year, the Group has entered into
two hire purchase agreements with a bank each
with terms of five years for the hire of 24 sets of
machinery. In relation to these sets of machinery,
the Group has entered into three lease
agreements with two separate sub-contractors
for a term of five years and at a monthly
rental that coincide with the terms of and the
amount of monthly hire rent payable under the
corresponding hire purchase agreements that
cover the particular machinery.

FA - ANEEE-FERITAIL
Min AR FROHERE R - A
THR2480 128 - BLEx T ==
M » AEEEREBLSE
BRI =1 SR FHEER
# 0 FAMEE BRI E#ES
Z R R 2 IR R T A
FERTEV7E © £ FARR °
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19 CAPITAL AND RESERVES
(@) Movement in components of equity
The reconciliation between the opening and
closing balances of each component of the
Group's consolidated equity is set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

19 BXRKfE
(a) MEARBDZRE

REEG AR BTAEARBOIN
HAR) B AR A SR BRI
RRmBEIR - AABRFEI R
FRZEAERARE D Z 7

AN
A

Details of the Company’s individual components BENRTX :
of equity between the beginning and the end of
the year are set out below:
The Company
NG|
Share Share  Retained
capital  premium profit Total
BE  ROHE KREEA @t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
Balance at 1 April 2017 R-ZE-tEWMA—-H
&R 8,300 75,453 67,921 151,674
Dividend approved in respect REFERENRE
of the previous year (note 19(b)(i)) (BFEE19(b) ) = - (83,000) (83,000)
Dividend approved in respect HAFEEHARRE
of the current year (note 19(0)(ii)) (B &E19(b)(i)) - - (24,900)  (24,900)
Profit and total comprehensive FRHEMNREE
income for the year WAz - - 84,082 84,082
Balance at 31 March 2018 R-ZZE-NE=H
=t-Bz&R 8,300 75,453 44103 127,856
Balance at 1 April 2018 R-ZE-NENA—-A
&R 8,300 75,453 44,103 127,856
Profit and total comprehensive FRRNREHE
income for the year Nt - - 1,054 1,054
Balance at 31 March 2019 R-ZZ-NE=AH
=t-Brz&& 8,300 75,453 45157 128,910
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19 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 19 EXKf#is (&)

(b) Dividends b) K2
(i)  Dividend payable to equity shareholders of )y BHERNEAAMBRFEAR
the Company attributable to the previous AN [ L ROR A &9
financial year, approved and paid during FERTAS 2 A R 2 AR BR A
the year: 9=
2019 2018
“E-hE —E-N\F
$000 $'000
T T
No dividend was declared or paid in N4 & 3f £ 5 R 5k [+
respect of the previous financial ERBEMHEEZ
year during the year (2018: 10 BB (ZE—NF:
cents per ordinary share) BikE@R100L) - 83,000
(i)  Dividend payable to equity shareholders of (iy BWEBRAFEMENAR
the Company attributable for the year: Nl R R AR B
2019 2018
ZE-hE —E-N\E
$'000 $'000
Tr T
No interim dividend was AEEWREERKIKTZ
declared or paid during the year HERE (ZE-N\F:
(2018: 3 cents per ordinary share) SR B3 = 24,900
No dividend was proposed after RERE BRI &
the end of the reporting period BIRRE
(2018: Nil (ZB-N\F:E) = -

- 24,900
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19 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 19 EAXKf#fs (&)

(c) Share capital (9 K=
The Company
O
2019 2018
“2-hE “E-)\E

No. of shares Amount  No. of shares Amount

ReEE £ | POEE! &%

§'000 $'000

i T
Authorised - ordinary shares EE-§R0.017TZ

of $0.01 each: LR

At 1 Apri and 31 March REA-BR=A=+—H 2,000,000,000 20,000 2,000,000,000 20,000

Ordinary shares, issued and LRR EBAR
fully paid: Hr:

At 1 Apri and 31 March REA—BR=A=T—H 830,000,000 8300 830,000,000 8,300

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled LB A A A R RE T R

to receive dividends as declared from time to EIRZZE - WHEEARRQT

time and are entitled to one vote per share at RERNE EAERBKRHIE—

meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares 2 - BT ERAR A ZF

rank equally with regard to the Company’s BREEM 5 HZHHERMAL

residual assets.
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19 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(e)

(@

(i)

Share premium

The share premium account is governed by
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands
and may be applied by the Company
subject to the provisions, if any, of its
memorandum and articles of association in
paying distributions or dividends to equity
shareholders.

No distribution or dividend may be
paid to the equity shareholders out
of the share premium account unless
immediately following the date on which
the distribution or dividend is proposed to
be paid, the Company will be able to pay
its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

Capital reserve
The capital reserve was created as a result
of the reorganisation to rationalise the
Group structure in preparation for the
listing of the Company’s shares on the
Stock Exchange.

Distributability of reserves

At 31 March 2019, the aggregate amount of
the Company's reserves available for distribution
to equity shareholders of the Company, as
calculated in accordance with the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands and the Company’s
memorandum and articles of association, was
$120,610,000 (2018: $119,556,000). The
directors did not propose any final dividend after
the end of the reporting period (2018: Nil) (note
19(b)(ii)).

19

BARK f#f ()
RENMEREHN

(d)

(e)

0]

(ii)

B 42 5 (B

BaEREFEEHS
REPERE  NABR
I 42 2 AR S A5 20 TR B
REEAREEABE
T2 R4 B AR Rl Y 15 XX
(WA) AR EE

BIFEREE AN IR
KB E R RARER
AR AR
HIMERS - BRI #
PR 73 (B AR A A M
PR XA 2 RS R

BEXRRE
HREAREFAR DA
BRI TA B 3 P L A
AR BERE - MR
BN -

REUDIKREE

n=

T AF=A=+—H -

ANRAF A SR F AR A #E
= I8 A e i 42 58 (IR 15 B9
SHENAENUKRAR G 4E
BERAARMBATE) B
120,610,0007C (=T — )\ 4 :
119,556,0007T) ° A ¥k & HA
Kig - EEWEEDRMNEM
RERE B (ZF— N\ : &)
(Bt 5E19(b)ii)) °
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19 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

()

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern in order to fund
its construction business, provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a
balance between the higher shareholder returns
that might be possible with higher levels of
borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

The Government requires contractors on the
list of approved contractors for public works
(the “List”) to maintain such minimum working
capital as the Government may from time to time
determine (the “Required Minimum Working
Capital”). A subsidiary of the Company is subject
to the Required Minimum Working Capital as the
subsidiary is a contractor on the List. Except for
this, neither the Company nor of its subsidiaries
are subject to externally imposed capital
requirements.

19

BN f#f ()

()

EARERE
AEEEREANFEEBER
REAE RS ECEEEE
BLBERNRLT)  ABEEEE
BEE - BIREAERDRR - [
HNREEMEREE ANF
0 WHERF R ER & ARZERE A
AR E & AR

ANER B AE R N E B A0 E R
HERGERE  LHERRERE
Bl (4 BAfE K& BN Al eI
=) EIREE RRNEDS K
RIE 2 BRFE - ARRIRE
AR R B B AN RE(E
AHEE o

B ERAFIR A AR TR
EE A (TR /) AER
HBABRETEEERNE
REZEEEAN ([HBEREZ
BEXR]) - KRB —RHMEA
AIREEREEEERNNR
R RERZMEA B SAM
EHEGER © BRULDASN - AR
Al M E KB A RIS ZSNERHE
MERIREARR -
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20 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity and interest rate risks arises
in the normal course of the Group’s business. The
Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group
to manage these risks are described below.

(a)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to bank deposits, trade receivables, retentions
receivable and contract assets. The Group has a
credit policy in place and the exposures to these
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Cash is deposited with financial institutions with
sound credit ratings and the Group has exposure
limit to any single financial institution. Given
their high credit ratings, management does not
expect any of these financial institutions and
counterparties will fail to meet their obligations.

Trade receivables, retentions receivable and
contract assets

In respect of trade receivables, retentions
receivable and contract assets, individual
credit evaluations are performed as part of the
acceptance procedures for new construction
contracts. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and
take into account information specific to the
customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates.
Trade receivables are due within 14-30 days from
the date of billing. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
has significant concentration of credit risk in a
few customers. In view of their credit standing,
good payment record and long established
relationships with the Group, management
does not consider the Group's credit risk to be
significant. At 31 March 2019, 19% (2018:
9%) and 52% (2018: 40%) of the total trade
receivables, retentions receivable and contract
assets (2018: total trade receivables, retentions
receivable and gross amounts due from
customers for contract work) was due from the
Group's largest customer and the Group's five
largest customers respectively.

20

BEABEERSRTAN
AFE

AEBHEEBARFEAZEE
MEBE L LA ERRER - NERBAR
7% E 2 b2 &ZKEIFHLAE.E!EEZ%H
B B0 B 75 R [ B R BUR K B AR B A
T o

(a)

FERR

AEENEERBREIEREIR
TR BRESERR - B
RESRAEWEE - BEED

55’@1;?? ﬂi I%‘ZEEQID/(
EEERR

BReFRDIFRRRIFEERT
RH SRS MAKEY
F-SRBERERE - ER
ZECBMBEBEEREEN
o EEEUNRPZT TR
RN ST TReEITELE

EWE B - ERRE 2K
BRIEE
HEWE ZHRR - BREES
BHEEMS @ ~AEESE
TEREEIZIERITEES
HENIZ T —B D %iﬁ@
SRREFBE N EHR
A RN RS « B
ZEEPHFEERMREPZ
M%E%@%leﬁoﬁw
B 5 RN RE A 8 E
if+EWJ% REE
A& RF P WERER

REEHHR AEBH D&
BEEEAEESTRR -
ENEENEETLR  RIFE
Rk EAEBEEY R
HIRER - B ERSAEE A
THEERBIAEK - A=
T—hE= H +—8 -k
W%%%ﬁ JEREB & R E
m%%%ﬁﬁ_? J\F B
B IR - FEUIRBB & M &
W%ﬁé%l?ﬁﬁﬁﬁz
) R D R19% (ZF— )\
£:9%) B52% (ZE— )\
F 1 40%) THEWARE B R K
BEEFBNEWRAEERAR
FRIA -
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20 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables, retentions receivable and
contract assets (continued)

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables, retentions receivables and contract
assets at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix.
Given the customers of the Group are mainly
reputable companies and the Group has not
experienced any significant credit losses in the
past, management considered that the allowance
for ECLs is insignificant. As a result, no provision
for impairment of trade receivables, retentions
receivable and contract assets is necessary during
the year.

Comparative information under HKAS 39

Prior to 1 April 2018, an impairment loss was
recognised only when there was objective
evidence of impairment (see note 2(g)(i) — policy
applicable prior to 1 April 2018). At 31 March
2018, none of the trade debtors was determined
to be impaired.

The ageing analysis of trade debtors (net of
allowances for doubtful debts) that were neither

EEBEEREMTAN
N FE (&)

(a)

FERRE (&)

JEWE BRI [ERRE 2 K
BRIEE (&)
AEBZEERZMBEHE
EEENS R (BRERRGT
H) R ERKE SRR - &
WIRE & KA KB ER EER
o ENAKENEPTER
EERHNARR]  MAKEB
EXBHREMEREERE
B EEERAEREEESE
HEHELAEX - Bt - £
BRI E ZIRR - AR
BeRaEENREEDR
1o

BB &5 E R FE395E B LB
= N\FWMA—HA ' BE
EEETARSREZRBRRE
2 (RM A — —FE— N
/A —HAEANEER) °

R-B—\F=A=+—8 -

1 1 P U 5 BR SRR AR R R
(=

I £ 18 5l 3 2 R AR R B
# B W 5 AR R (FNBR R AR 18

individually nor collectively considered to be ) BERER DT
impaired were as follows:
2018
—E-)N\F
$'000
Tt
Over 3 months past due 160 HA R 383 1E A 289

Receivables that were neither past due nor
impaired related to a wide range of customers
for whom there was no recent history of default.
Receivables that were past due but not impaired
related to a number of independent customers
that had a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, management believed
that no impairment allowance was necessary
in respect of these balances as there had been
no significant change in credit quality and the
balances were still considered fully recoverable.

BE 4280 A 7T Rk B H) FE M SR IR
W oK 8 AT IR K RCER Y
B o @A R AR R
RIEW MEF S B E 2 TF
ERIFEBCBNBILEP
RBBELR  BEERSHE
AR RS REARELIRERE
REREEERLESAZL
Baaiaf sr 28m -
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Individual subsidiaries within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management,
including the raising of loans to cover the
expected cash demands. The Group's policy is to
regularly monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed
funding lines from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

Given the amounts due to shareholders at 31
March 2018 had no fixed repayment terms
(see note 17), it is not practical to disclose their
remaining contractual maturities at the end
of the reporting period. Except for these, the
following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period
of the Group's financial liabilities, which are
based on contractual undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates
current at the end of the reporting period) and
the earliest date the Group can be required to
pay:

20 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 20 HiEEREEREMIAEN
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL NFE (8E)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (b) REBELRR

AEEETHERWMER A
HERGMRSEERE B
REKEFEHBHASH
SR o R 2 BUR 2T BB R
B NERSHESHTE - A
REBFEREZHZER A
MR RE e RN IRE
TR BEBHTE AR E
BE - tmmeRi iz
MBELHE -

ERNR_E—\F=ZA=+—
B A {5 IR B R N [ R
FH (R E17) - R¥REH
REBENSEHTANIHEE
DB o BRILIASN - TRFF
MAEESREERRESRR
RBETAOEIEE - IERE
HARITRBE SR (BIEERE
HFIERTENFBENR - WA
28 RIER RS AR AN E]
FIR) K AN E B A] 1 B(EE
MxFHEE:

At 31 March 2019
RZB-AE=A=1-H
Total
contractual More than More than
Carrying  undiscounted ~ Within 1 year 1 year but less 2 years but less
amount cashflow orondemand  than2years  than 5 years
R -Ehg BB-£ MENL
HREE BeR REX  BORRE  BIREE
$'000 §000 §000 $'000 §'000
Tn T T T T
Trade creditors EREZ5ER 70,578 70,578 70,578 - -
Obligations under finance lease ~ BETERE 20,671 23,009 4,601 4,601 13,807
91,249 93,587 75179 4,601 13,807
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20 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

(0

(d)

(e)

Liquidity risk (continued)

20

EEBEEREMTAN

FE ()
b) FHESER (@

At31 March 2018
R-F-\E=A=1-H

Total
contractual More than More than
Camjing  undiscounted ~ Within Tyear 1 year but less 2 years but less
amount cshfow orondemand  than2years  than 5 years
BENATH —ERg BR-5 MEM L
KEE B BEX  BIRWE  EORRE
§'000 §'000 $'000 $'000 §'000
T T T T S
Trade creditors 2 5% 65,464 65,464 65,464 - -
65,464 65,464 65,464 - -
Interest rate risk (0 R=EREE
At 31 March 2019 and 2018, the Group did not RZZE-NFERZFT-N\F=
hold any assets and liabilities which are exposed A=+—8  AEETEREE
to significant interest risk. TR E AN R R E) & E
R&afRE-
Foreign currency risk (d) HERE
The Group's functional currency is Hong Kong REENREERERET - I
dollars. At 31 March 2019, the Group'’s currency ZE-NF=A=1+—H ' &
risk is primarily attributable to deposits with SENEYERBREZHERER
banks of $23,912,000 (2018: $24,985,000) IARE TAREK]D JIE
denominated in the Renminbi (“RMB"). $R1T7F723,912,0005T (==&
Assuming that the RMB had strengthened/ — J\F : 24,985,0007T) ° &
weakened by 5% at 31 March 2019 and the BRZE-—NEFE=A=1—
changes had been applied to the Group’s B AREFEB21E5% B %
exposure to currency risk for those deposits at EEHENZARARAEASE
that date, with other variables held constant, the EzZETREENEER
Group's profit after tax and total equity would % MEMESRFTE - 8
increase/decrease by approximately $998,000 REERRRT AR KRR
(2018: $1,043,000). M55 00, R > £9998,0007T
(=ZZ—/\% :1,043,0007T) °
The exposure to currency risk as referred to XAt EE R s E R E A
above represents management's assessment of a FEEET—AFERSH
reasonably possible change in exchange rate over HARE A 86 3R 2 & 2R B =
the period until next annual reporting date. g o
Fair values measurement () AFEE

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial
assets and liabilities carried at cost or amortised
cost are not materially different from their fair
values as at 31 March 2019 and 2018.

R-E—NER-T—/\F=
A=+—8  AEEERAS
B ATHEN S REAE R
fErEE ARG S A TFER
BATR -
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21

22

COMMITMENTS 21 R
At 31 March 2019, the Group’s total future minimum R=ZE—NAF=A=1+—H ' 4%
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases EEMTIEEEEHETE T ARR
were payable as follows: IEEENRBELT
2019 2018
—E-hfF —T—N\F
$'000 $'000
T T
Within 1 year —FR 487 1,462
After 1 year but within 5 years —FBRERAFNR 72 536
559 1,998
The Group is the lessee in respect of an office and AEEACEREBRTHE —Eift
items of office equipment held under operating leases. NRERBAZEXRMEIAEBAEA o
The leases typically run for an initial period of 2 to NHEHEBEER_ZERF  WMAE
5 years, with an option to renew the lease when all GCREFR Tl EEEBEER
terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes 2o BEmBLBERAES -
contingent rentals.
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 22 HAEE
At 31 March 2019, the Group had contingent liabilities R-E—NF=A=+—H8 &%

in respect of performance bonds to guarantee for
the due and proper performance of the objections
undertaken by the Group’s subsidiary for projects
amounting to $86,692,000 (2018: $84,461,000) in its
ordinary course of business. The performance bonds are
expected to be released in accordance with the terms
of the respective construction contracts.

EEBAEEHBARNE MR
BBRPRELZESEITAEEE 2
BEEMIEREROBLRE Z A
B 15 /586,692,0007T (ZZ— )\ F :
84,461,0007T) ° FEAIRBETEH IR
BEEREANNIEHER -
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23 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

In addition to the transactions and balances (@)
disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements,

the Group entered into the following material

related party transaction during the year:

23 ERBEMAERS

PR TSR EA B D PR FE Y
R 5 RAERIN
BETSATERBEE RS :

REBRAF

2019 2018
—E-hE ZZ-N\F
$'000 $'000
Fx Tt
Rental expenses paid to B T — E
a related company AEIZEERX 1,192 1,128

Note:  The directors of the Company are of opinion that the
above transactions were entered into in the normal

course of business.

Remuneration of key management personnel, (b)
including amounts paid to the directors as
disclosed in note 8 and certain of the highest
paid employees and senior management as

s ARREFERR/LARZTIRN

A& XS BIZTETL

TZEEAEBNFM (B
ENEENSHE) NI E8K
BmETHRSFMES RS
AR E IR E O 3 B B B REO

disclosed in note 9, is as follows: TR
2019 2018
—g-nFE —TNE
$'000 $'000
T T
Short-term employee benefits EAEEERT 5,396 5,867
Post-employment benefits BB A2 A 71 75
5,467 5,942
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23 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs”
(see note 6(b)).

The related party transactions in respect of rental
expenses paid to a related company and the
remuneration of directors and chief executive of
the Company constitute connected transactions
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
However, these transactions are exempt from
reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The related party transactions in respect of the
remuneration of key management personnel
(other than directors and chief executive) of the
Company did not fall under the definition of
connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The related party transactions in respect
of the amounts due from/to shareholders
as set out on notes 13 and 17 respectively
constitute connected transactions as defined
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. However,
these transactions are exempt from reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

23 ERBEBMAERS (B)

(b)

()

FENmBEt ATEIAA](R
B 5E6(b)) ©

HEN T —EEBARNES
A EARREREREETH
ABFHMA R T X5
BX LT AR RIS 14AE SR E BV Y
BR 5 o R REXHER
REST EMARRIE14AZEIR [
Bk - DNEMIBY BIRILER
5 o

HEANRTEEEAL (BESF
MEBITHABRIN FNE
Eal:pleali g RN =) =l
HAFELUAZERTENREERS
NIFBEEERS °

B8 5 Bl A Bt 5E13 8217 Ff 5 &
W,/ I BR R IE A RE O B
RSE ETARAE14AF R
EMERS R ZER
SRR GRET ERAFE14A
BIE R - NERBIIER
HEERTE o
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24 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 24 NTEIEE Z WA R T
FINANCIAL POSITION
2019 2018
—E-hF —ET—-)\F
Note $'000 $'000
B 5 Fx Tz
Non-current assets FERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary KRB AR ZIRE 12 —* —*
Amounts due from subsidiaries & Y fff B A & B 128,915 126,221
128,915 126,221
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments and other TEATFRIE K&
receivables H fth & U 5108 10 10
Cash and bank balances R NIRRT 452 2,106
462 2,116
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables E b FE T 5RI8 (425) (440)
Tax payable FERT IR (42) (41)
o........\a67) __(48])
Net current (liabilities)/assets 7 & (B &) &EEFE | (5) 1,635
NET ASSETS EEFE 128,910 127,856
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEEXR#EE 19(a)
Share capital A% 7R 19(c) 8,300 8,300
Reserves s 120,610 119,556
TOTAL EQUITY R 128,910 127,856

@ Represents $8 * 1587
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25

26

COMPARATIVE FIGURES 25 LEEEZE
The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 at 1 April AEERZZFT-N\FEA—HERX
2018. Under the transition method chosen, comparative FEFRB B ISR EXERIZE 155 - 1B
information is not restated. Further details of the BAEZENRER L LRSI
changes in accounting policies are disclosed in note 2(c). RER - BRASFEREE 2 —
FHBEE R 20 -
POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 26 RBEZ=-ZF— hLE = A
NEW STANDARDS AND =+—HIEFECEMEN
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT REBRWERT ~ FETERI R
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR RENTEEE
ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
Up to the date of issue of the financial statements, BEEAUBHEATIERSR  HES
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, SR AEEEM —RINEBE_Z
new standards and interpretations which are not yet —hWEF=ZA=+—HLEFEHEXE
effective for the year ended 31 March 2019 and which MEMEET « $haT 2R R 2 B I &
have not been adopted in these financial statements. R EF B HRERPEDN - ZFIEF]
These include the following which may be relevant to RATET R BIE T A] gL B AR £
the Group. T
Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on
or after
REULT RS z%
HHRNESTHREEX
HKFRS 16, Leases 1 January 2019
BREMBMEENE 165 HE —Z—-hF—H—H
HK(IFRIC) 23, Uncertainty over income tax treatments 1 January 2019
5% (BBRVERERBRES) F23%  FTAHEZLNTHETIE —T—-hhF—HA—H

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
ERUBHEEN T —HEFE

“EFASNFENE

1 January 2019
—ET-hE—HA—H
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26 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 26
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards
and interpretations is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far the Group has identified some
aspects of the HKFRS 16 which may have an impact on
the consolidated financial statements. Further details of
the expected impacts are discussed below. While the
assessment has been substantially completed for HKFRS
16, the actual impact upon the initial adoption of this
standard may differ as the assessment completed to
date is based on the information currently available
to the Group, and further impacts may be identified
before the standard is initially applied in the Group’s
interim financial report for the six months ended 30
September 2019. The Group may also change its
accounting policy elections, including the transition
options, until the standard is initially applied in that
financial report.

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 2(f), currently the Group classifies
leases into finance leases and operating leases and
accounts for the leases arrangement differently,
depending on the classification of the lease. The Group
enters into some leases as the lessor and others as the
lessee.

REE-Z-N5=A
=t+—-BLEFEERMER
REMBIEE] ~ FaTEA R
RENTESE (@)

ZNER B IE AT 4 TR AT B R e AR HA
MR EEF] « Rl B R B E
Eox295 AEERR CERE
B BREENFI6KEZETHE
AREEHEAMBERRENTE -
BRI ENE-TFBEIWAT
BEHEEVHEREENF165R
ZRHES KRBT - B B Bl 2R
BINARERFAIGZERRE
R WERRAZENZERTE
AEEBMAR - AREREREE
BE_T-NFAA=THLRHE
H ) B 75 3R 5 18 R a2 25 Rl AT A
RERRE-—TTE - AKENT
EEFNESHARREE 28
BEE BEERERERERANY
BRERA e

ERMBHREENE165 - HE
NP E2()PT B FE - A E B Al
BEES ABEMERKEHEMN
B YRFEERMNATREGT A
MEZHAR - AEBEHHEEA
HBEAS D a8 HE R AR
ABMETAL °
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26 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR

ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 (continued)
HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly
on the way that lessors account for their rights and
obligations under a lease. However, once HKFRS 16
is adopted, lessees will no longer distinguish between
finance leases and operating leases. Instead, subject to
practical expedients, lessees will account for all leases
in a similar way to current finance lease accounting,
i.e. at the commencement date of the lease the lessee
will recognise and measure a lease liability at the
present value of the minimum future lease payments
and will recognise a corresponding “right-of-use”
asset. After initial recognition of this asset and liability,
the lessee will recognise interest expense accrued on
the outstanding balance of the lease liability, and the
depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead of the
current policy of recognising rental expenses incurred
under operating leases on a systematic basis over the
lease term. As a practical expedient, the lessee can
elect not to apply this accounting model to short-term
leases (i.e. where the lease term is 12 months or less)
and to leases of low-value assets, in which case the
rental expenses would continue to be recognised on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting
as a lessee of leases for properties, plant and
equipment which are classified as operating leases. The
application of the new accounting model is expected
to lead to an increase in both assets and liabilities and
to impact on the timing of the expense recognition in
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income over the period of the lease.
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26 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 26
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR

ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 (continued)
HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 April 2019. As allowed by HKFRS 16,
the Group plans to use the practical expedient to
grandfather the previous assessment of which existing
arrangements are, or contain, leases. The Group will
therefore apply the new definition of a lease in HKFRS
16 only to contracts that are entered into on or after
the date of initial application. In addition, the Group
plans to elect the practical expedient for not applying
the new accounting model to short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets.

The Group plans to elect to use the modified
retrospective approach for the adoption of HKFRS
16 and will recognise the cumulative effect of initial
application as an adjustment to the opening balance
of equity at 1 April 2019 and will not restate the
comparative information. As disclosed in note 21, at
31 March 2019 the Group’s future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases
amounted to $559,000. Upon the initial adoption of
HKFRS 16, the opening balances of lease liabilities and
the corresponding right of-use assets will be adjusted,
after taking account the effects of discounting, as at 1
April 2019.

Other than the recognition of lease liabilities and
right-of-use assets, the Group expects that the
transition adjustments to be made upon the initial
adoption of HKFRS 16 will not be material. However,
the expected changes in accounting policies as
described above could have a material impact on the
Group's financial statements from 2019 onwards.
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A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the AEBESAA AT RFEENEEREENL
Group for the last five financial years is as follows. BEBENT

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+-HLEE

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
“E-HF —T-RE ZT—+F —T-N\F ZEB-hE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr F F Fr r
RESULTS £
. Revenue W= 386,719 497,303 370,235 287,846 305,128
Profit before taxation BB AR F 89,376 111,497 127,797 27,566 12,420
Income tax =0 (16,723) (19,422) (21,100) (4,548) (1,851)
Profit and total comprehensive /%I % 2 &
income for the year ONE 72,653 92,075 106,697 23,018 10,569
At 31 March
R=A=+-H
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
“E-HF TR F T—+F —T-)\F ZEBE-hE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr F Fr Fr r
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERER
Total assets BEE 289,631 440,562 410,794 319,746 344,174
Total liabilities maffk (140,850)  (109,295) (84,050) (77,884) (99,262)
Net assets BEFE 148,781 331,267 326,744 241,862 244,912

This report is published in both English and Chinese  ZR¥R&E LA ENIERE 5 EIR o fE MBS
languages. Should there be any inconsistency between the — 5HIF AR EAF R - DA SURY%E -
Chinese and English versions, the English version shall prevail.
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